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G EORGE D EM EN'T" 
M AyoR 

M arch 21, 2003 

~ffi~e of ~he ~ or 

M em bers of the City Council 
City of Bossier City, Louisiana 

B O S S IE R C ITY, LO U IS IA N A 

620 BENTO N ROAb 
POST OFFICE BOX 5337 

BO SS IER CITY, LA 71171-5337 

(31~)741-a501 

I am pleased to join our Finance Director in presenting the City of Bossier City's 
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year  2002. The ar ea econom y continued to grow 
as indicated by the opening of new businesses, contin ued expansions of single-fam ily 
subdivisions, an d tourism activity. Despite a general slowdown in th e national econom y 
in 2002, the City's sales taxes an d property taxes increas ed this year whi ch is indicative 
of our continued local grow th in th e com m unity. 

The City of Bossier City riverfront will never be the sam e as the Louisiana 

Riverwalk project is now coming closer to reality. Louisian a Riverwalk's first retailer, 
Bas s Pro Shops Outdoor W orld m egas tore plans to open in th e fall 2003- in tim e for the 
hunting an d Christm as  shopping seasons. A 165 room  all-suites hotel, five res taurants, a 
14-screen m ovie theater an d num erous retailers are in final negotiations with developers 

of the $150 million entertainment and retail project. Construction continues on the 
Arthur Ray Teague Par kway w ith  the widening of Traffic Street betw een Bar ksdale 
Boulevar d an d Eas t Texas Street. Plan s for the Benton Road Overpass ar e com plete an d 
property acquisition is underway. Vehicle traffic related to our continued gr owth, 

combined with the traffic increase projected from the Lo uisian a Riverwalk project, will 
require that infras tructure expansions related to vehicle traffic and at-grade train 
crossings rem ain a top priority. Th e orderly growth of our city w ill depend in the 
resolution of th ese traffic problem s. 

Despite the appear an ce of a recession on a national level, our local econom y 
continues to be stable an d we expect to continue seeing som e m oderate gr owt h in th e 
foreseeable futur e. This will require that w e closely m onitor our  receipts an d 
expenditures so th at taxpayers are receiving th e m axim um  value for th eir tax dollars. The 
City Council continues to effectively perform their check an d balance function to insure 
th at this happens. 

W e look forward to fiscal year 2003 as  another year of pro ductive, harm onious 
partnership with the Council. W e shall continue our collective efforts to provide the 
citizens of our gr owing com m unity the services and quality of life they deserve. 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY 
P. O , BOX 5337 

BOSSIER CITY. LOUISIANA 7 | 171 -~5337 

The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

M arch 21, 2003 

In accordan ce with Section 4.06, paragraph (7), of the City Charter, I am pleased to submit the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for th e year ended December 31, 2002. The financial statements 
were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in 
accordan ce with generally accepted government auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public 
accountants. I believe this report presents comprehensive inform ation about the City's financial and 
operating activities during 2002 that is useful to taxpayers, citizens, and other interested persons. 

This report was  prepared by the Accounting Division of the Finance Department and consists of 
management's representations concerning the finances of the City. Consequently, management assumes 
full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the inform ation presented in this report. To 
provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has established an 
internal control fram ework that is designed both to protect the govern ment's assets from loss, theft, or 
m isuse and to compile sufficient reliable inform ation for the preparation of the City's financial statements 
in conform ity with GAAP. Because the cost of intern al controls should not outw eigh their benefits, the 
City 's comprehensive framework of intern al controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than 
absolute assurance that the finan cial statements will be free from material m isstatement. W e as sert that, to 
th e best of our knowled ge an d belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

In accordan ce with Section 3.10 of the City Charter, the City Council is required to provide for an an nual 
independent audit of the accounts and financial transactions of the City by a firm  of indepe ndent certified 
public accountants duly licensed to practice in the State of Louisian a. The accounting firm of KPM G LLP 
was selected by the City to conduct its annual audit. The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable as suran ce that th e finan cial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended December 3 I, 2002, 
ar e free of material m isstatement. Th e independent audit involved exam ining, on a test bas is, evidence 
suppo rting th e am ounts an d disclosures in the finan cial statements; as sessing the accounting principles 
used an d significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. Th e independent auditor concluded, bas ed upon the audit, th at there was a reasonable bas is 
for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2002, are fairly presented in conform ity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is 
presented as the first component of the finan cial section of th is report. 



The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

M arch 21, 2003 

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated "Single 
Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit 
engagem ents require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial 
statements, but also on the audited government's intern al controls and compliance with legal requirements, with 
spec ial emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the adm inistration of federal awards. 
Th ese reports are available in the City's separately issued Single Audit Report. 

GAAP require th at management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 

finan cial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of tran smittal is 
design ed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found 
immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

PRO FILE O F TH E CITY O F BO SSIER 

Th e City of Bossier City was incorporated in 1907. It is located on th e east ban k of the Red River in Northwest 
Louisian a, approximately thirty-five miles south of Arkan sas an d twenty miles east of Texas. The area dates 
back to the 1830's when it was th e Elysian Groves Plantation of James and M ary Cane. Steamboat loads of 
cotton, corn  and sweet potatoes were shipped to markets in the south an d east, from the plan tation port known to 
man y as "Canes Landing". The current area of the City is approximately 41 square m iles. 

The City of Bossier has been organized under a mayor-eouneil form of government since 1977, when the current 
City charter was adopted by the voters. Th e charter provides for a seven-member council, with five members 
selected for four-year  term s from separ ate districts of th e City an d two mem bers elected at large by all th e 
qualified electors of the city . The mayor is elected at-large for a four-year term , is not a member of the coun cil, 
but has veto power over council action. 

Th e City provides a wide range of serv ices including public safety, highways and streets, san itation, water an d 
sewer services, recreational activities, general administration functions an d others. 

These finan cial statements present the City of Bossier (the primary government) an d its component units. The 
component units are included in the City's reporting entity bec ause of the sign ificance of their operational or 
financial relationships with th e City. Included as discretely presented com ponent units is th e finan cial da ta for 
the City Court, City M arshal, the M etropolitan Planning Comm ission, and the Bossier Public Trust Finan cing 
Authority. They are reported separately within th e City's finan cial statements to emphasize that they are legally 
separate from th e City . Additional inform ation on these legally separate entities can be found in the notes to the 
finan cial statements. 

BUDG ETA RY CO NTRO L 

The an nual budget serves as the foundation for the City 's finan cial plan ning and control. Prior to October 15, the 
M ayor files with the City Clerk a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following 
Jan uary. The operating budget ineludes proposed expenditures and related  financing sources. The City Coun cil 
conducts public hearings and proposes adoption of the various budget ordinan ces. Prior to December 15, the 
City Council adopts the final budgets controlling the financial operations of the City for the ensuing fiscal year. 



The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

M arch 21, 2003 

Legal budgetary control for operating budgets is exercised at the department/object class. The ordinances 
provide lump sum appropriation at the object level. Th e City Charter allows the Mayor to authorize the transfer 
of budgeted amounts from one activity to another within the same lump sum appropriation, within the same 
department. The City Charter provides that expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations. Form al 
budgetary  integration and encumbrance accounting are employed as man agement control devices during the 
year. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual govern m ental fund for w hich 
an  appropriated an nual budget has been adopted. 

LO CAL ECO N O M Y 

Bossier City is a dynamic growing area with a proud past and a future filled with the promise of continued 
growth. It is an area that continues to be defined by the Red River and major cultural features including 
Barksdale Air Force Bas e and riverboat casinos. Some of the key factors in the development of the area include 

its central location among major southern cities and its importance as a transportation hub. Barksdale Air Force 
Base is one of the largest m ilitary installations in the nation and by far the most significant employm ent 
generator in the area. The direct impact of Barksdale Air Force Base on the local economy is estimated to be in 
excess of $430 million. Bossier City and Parish have continued to gain in population in recent decades with both 
growing at a faster pace than statewide rates for Louisiana. The City added 15,000 residents be tween 1970 and 
2000 and the Parish grew by nearly 34,000 persons. 

The Bossier Riverfront has undergone significant change over the last decade. The area has seen the addition of 
Red River channelization, the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway extension, and the riverboat casinos. Bossier's Old 
Downtown is evolving into an entertainment ar ea which has transform ed into the Riverwalk Entertainm ent 
District which is immediately next door to the Horseshoe Cas ino, the top-grossing casino in Louisian a. A recent 
independent feasibility study of the local market indicates that the development of "Louisiana Riverwalk" will 
generate $200 - $300 million annually. Louisiana Riverwalk will consist of entertainment, retail, hospitality, an d 
restaurant elements. The approximately 56 acres of riverfront property is situated in the heart of the 
Bossier/Shreveport M etropolitan ar ea. Th e site will be develope d into a variety of live m usic, perform ance 

theaters, restaurants, a blend of retail specialty shops, multiplex movie theatres, and hotels. The project will be a 
major attraction for 14 million gaming and tourist visitors annually, but also to the metro area and surrounding 
region's growing population. 

Also along the Riverfront District, is the Bossier City Century Tel Arena. The arena can house a variety of 

spo rting an d perform ance program s, as well as serve as a major assembly hall for the community. According to 
the music trade industry publication Pollstar, in 2002 the CenturyTel Center has been ranked in the top 50 arenas 
in the world and in the first quarter of 2002 the concert industry tracking rating firm  ranked the Bossier City 
facility 18th in ticket sales for the first three months of 2002. 

Overall, the local economy is stable and the outlook is good. 

VIII 



The Honorable George Demen L M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

M arch 21, 2003 

LO NG-TERM  FINANCIAL PLANNING 

In accordance with Section 6.09 of our City Charter, the M ayor subm itted the year 2003-2007 Capital 
Improvement Program to the City Council in the first quarter of 2003. There are 31 projects which total 
approximately $33 million in progress as of December 31, 2002. There are 88 planned projects from year 2003 
through 2007 which total approximately $135 million. Some of the major projects and funding of these projects 
are summarized as follows: 

Proiec 

Benton Road Overpass 

Riverwalk Project 
Traffic Street Improvements 

Bossier Parish Community 
College Im provements 

Utilities Projects 
Arthur Ray Teague Parkw ay 
Interchan ge 

Old Shed Road Extension 
Viking Drive Improvements 
North Construction of ART 
Parkw ay 

M unicipal Complex Expansion 

Fund 

Riverboat Capital Projects Fund 
Sales Tax Bonds 
Sales Tax Capital Improvements and Riverboat 

Capital Projects 

Riverboat Capital Projects 
Revenue Bonds an d Reta ined Earn ings 

Riverboat Capital Projects 
Riverboat Capital Im provement 
Riverboat Capiial Improvements 

Riverboat Capita l Im provements 
Sales Tax Bonds 

A m ount 

$15,000,000 
$27,000,000 

$8,500,000 

$1,400,000 
$16,150,000 

$4,800,000 
$1,500,000 
$5,00O,000 

$5,000,000 
$7,500,000 

The City adm inistration plans to continue th e process of looking ahead financially for its operational and capita l 
needs. 

CASH M ANAGEM ENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES 

Th e City maintains a pooled cash an d investment account th at is available for use by all funds, except those 
restricted by statutes or other legal reasons. At the end of each business day, collected balances in all City bank 
acco unts are deposited into a SW EEP Account. These funds are invested in U.S. Government and U.S. Agency 
sec urities under the terms of an  overnight reparehase agreement. As of December 31, 2002, the City's cash 
resources were invested as follows: 

U.S. Government securities 
Certificate of Deposits 
Sweep Accoun t at bank 

Tota l 

55% 
42 
3 

Th e City's investm ent policy is to exercise that jud~aaent and care which men of prudence, discretion, and 
intelligence exercise in th e man agement of their own affairs. Investm ents are selec ted as  investments, not for 
spe culation, co nsidering the probable safety of the capital, as  well as the probable income to be derived. 

IX 
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and M embers of the City Council 

M arch 21, 2003 

Accordingly, deposits are either insured by federa l depository insurance or eollateralized. State statutes require 
that all public funds should be  insured or collateralized. The City's policy is not to have 
uninsured/uncollateralized funds which it controls. 

RISK  M A NAGEM ENT 

The City retains the risk for property, liability, workers compensation, and dental insurance. As part of this 
comprehensive plan, resources are being accumulated in internal service funds to meet potential losses. In 
addition, various risk control techniques including an employee safety program, drug free workplace program 
with mandatory  drug screening for new employees, and pre-employment physicals have been implemented to 

minimize accident-related losses. The City has third-party coverages subject to self-insured retentions which are 
more fully described in the notes to the financial statements. 

PENSION AND OTH ER PO STEM PLOYM ENT BENEFITS 

Th e City administers two defined be nefit pension plan s: the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (FPRF) and the 
Policeman 's Pension and Relief Fund (PPRF). Each year, an independent actuary calculates the amount of the 
annual contribution the City must make to the pension plan s. In 2001, the City had funded 37.6% of the actuarial 
an nual liability of the FPRF an d 28.5% of the actuarial annual liability of the PPRF. The current pe rcents funded 
are FPRF 38.5%  and PPRE 28.2% . The unfunded amounts for FPRF and PPRF are being amortized over ten 

year s. 

The City also provides pension benefits for firemen hired after Jan uary 1, 1980 and policemen hired after 
September 9, 1977 through the Statewide Firefighters Retirement System and the M unicipal Police Employees' 
Retirement System . Th e City has no obligations in connection with employee benefits offered through this plan 
beyond its annual required payment to the pension boards. 

Additional information on the City's pension arran gements and postemployment benefits can be found in the 
notes to the financial statem ents. 

AW ARDS AND ACKN O W LEDGM ENTS 

The Government Finance Offi cers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded  a Certificate 
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Bossier City for its Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Repo rt for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001. Th e Certificate of Achievement is the highest 
form of recognition in governmental accounting and financial reporting, an d its attainment repre sents a 
significant accomplishment by the City and its man agement. W e are proud to have received this award each year 
for more than the past twenty years (beginning with our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 1981). 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and 
efficiently organize d Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the contents of which conform to program 
standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. W e believe our current repo rt continues to 
conform  to Certificate of Achievement Progr am requirements, and we ar e subm itting it to th e GFOA to 
determ ine its eligibility for another certificate. 



The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 
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Sincere appreciation is expressed to the entire staff  in the Finance Department and especially to the professional 
accounting staff  whose dedicated an d effi cient services have m ade the timely prepara tion of this report possible. 
Th anks to the M ayor an d City Council for your support of excellence  in financial reporting an d fiscal integrity. 

Respectfully subm itted, 

Charles E. Glover 
Director of Finance 



C ertificate of 
A chievem ent 
for Excellence 
in Financial 
R eporting 

Presented to 

C ity of Bossier C ity, 
Louisiana 

For its Com prehensive Annual 
Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 
Decem ber 31, 2001 

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting is presented by the Governm ent Finance Officers 

Association of the United States and Canada to 
governm ent units and public employee retirem ent 
system s whose comprehensive annual finan cial 

reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest 
stan dards in governm ent accounting 

and financial repo rting. 
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333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 
Shreveport, LA 7] 101-3692 

Independent Auditors' R eport 

To the Honorable M embers of the City Council 
and the H onorable George Dement, M ayor 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

W e have audited th e accompanying financial statements of the governm ental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (City), as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2002, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in th e table 

of contents. W e have also audited the financial statements of each of the City's nonmajor governmental, 
nonmajor enterprise, and internal serfice funds presented as supplementary information in the 
accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of an d for the year ended 
December 31, 2002, as listed in the table of contents. These finan cial statements are the responsibility of 
the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these finan cial statements based on 
our audit. W e did not audit the component unit finan cial statements of the Bossier Public Trust Finan cing 
Authority (Authority), which represents 83% and 38%, respectively, of the assets an d revenues of the 
aggregate discretely presented component units. Th ose financial statements were audited by an other 
auditor whose report thereon has been furn ished to us, an d our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts 
included for the Auth ority, is based on th e report of th e other auditor. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing stan dards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to finan cial audits contained  in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Th ose standards require that we plan  an d perform  
th e audit to obtain reas onable assuran ce about whether the basic financial statements ar e free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting th e am ounts an d 
disclosures in th e finan cial statements. An audit also includes as sessing the accounting principles used an d 
significant estimates made by man agement, as well as evaluating the overall finan cial statement 
presentation. W e believe th at our audit and the report of the other auditor provide a reas onable bas is for 
our opinions. 

In our opinion, bas ed on our audit an d the repo rt of th e oth er auditor, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective finan cial po sition of the governmental 

activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and th e aggregate remaining fund information of the City as  of December 31, 2002, and the 
respective chan ges in finan cial po sition an d cash flows, where applicable, thereof for th e year then ended 
in conform ity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, 
in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, th e 



respective financial position of each nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service 
fund of the City, as of Decem ber 31, 2002, an d the respective changes in f'maneial position and cash flows, 
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of Am erica. 

As described in note 13 to the basic financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of Govern mental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - an d M anagement's 

Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments; Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements- an d Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State 
and Local Governments: Omnibus; Govern mental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 38, Certain 
Financial Statement Note Disclosures," and Governm ental Accounting Standards Board Interp retation No. 

6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial 
Statements in 2002. 

In accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated M arch 21, 2003 
on our consideration of th e City's internal control over finan cial reporting an d on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, an d grants. That report is an integr al 
part of an  audit performed in accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards an d should be read in 

conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The management's discussion an d analysis, schedules of funding progr ess, and budgetary compar ison 
information listed as Required Supplemental Information in the table of contents are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements but are supplementary inform ation required  by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. W e have applied certain lim ited procedures, which 
consisted principally of inquiries of man agem ent regar ding th e methods of measurement an d presentation 
of the required supplementary inform ation. However, we did not audit the inform ation and express no 
opinion on it, 

Th e accompanying financial inform ation included in the introductory an d statistical sections as  listed in 

the table of contents has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements, and accordingly we express no opinion on them. 

M arch 21, 2003 



CIT Y O F BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

M anagemeut's Discussion and A nalysis 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

W e offer readers of the City of Bossier City's financial statements this narrative overview an d analysis of the 
financial activities of the City of Bossier City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. W e encourage 

readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have 
furn ished in our letter of transmittal. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the new reporting model adopted by the 
Governmental Acco unting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - 
and Management's Discussion and  Analysis -for State and Local Governments issued June 1999. Certain 
compar ative inform ation betw een the current year an d the prior year is required to be presented in th e M D&A . 
However, because  this is the first year of implementing the new reporting model, certain necessary com parative 
inform ation of the previous year was not prepared. Considering the financial resources necessary to prepare this 
inform ation for the prior year, and that the GASB Statement No. 34 permits the om ission of the comparative 
inform ation in the first year of adoption of the new reporting model, the City of Bossier City has elected to 
exclude the inform ation in this report. Subsequent reports will include th e comparative inform ation. 

Financial H ighlights 

Key financial highlights for the 2002 fiscal year include the following 

~ The assets of the City of Bossier City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$286,902,163 (net assets). Of this amount, approximately $98 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used 
to m eet government's obligations to citizens and creditors. 

~ The total net assets of the City of Bossier City increased by $20,665,461 for the year ended December 31, 
2002. Net assets of governmental activities increased by $19.6 million and net assets of business-type 
activities increased by $ I million. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Bossier City 's govern mental funds reported combined 
ending fund balance of $132,490,611, an increase of $35,758,824 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. 
Of this amount, $14.4 million was unreserved, undesignated, and available for spending; $86.4 million was 
unreserv ed but designated for subsequent years' expenditures; $9.8 million was reserved for debt service; 
an d $18.8 million is held in a pe rman ent trust and may not be spent. 

~ At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance for the General Fund was $5.8 
m illion or 16.4%  of total General Fund expenditures. 

~ The City of Bossier City's total debt increased $38,636,932 (48.2%) during the current fiscal year primarily 
as a result of the issuance of $29.3 million of Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds and $12.2 million of 
Utility Revenue Bonds. 

Overview of the Financial Statem ents 

Th is M D&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Bossier City's basic financial statements. The 
City of Bossier City's basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-wide financial 
statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the finan cial statements. This report also contains 
other supplementary inform ation in addition to the basic finan cial statements th emselves. 
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The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the City of Bossier City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City of Bossier City 's assets and liabilities, with 
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serv e 
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Bossier City is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents inform ation showing how the City of Bossier City's net as sets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All chan ges in net as sets are reported as soon as th e underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 

reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Th e Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the City of Bossier City 
that are principally supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and charges for services (governmental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all of a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities). The City of Bossier City's governmental activities include general 
govern ment, public safety, highways an d streets, cultural an d recreation, and City Court and M arshal. The 
business-type activities of the City of Bossier City include water and sewerage, san itation, an d emergency 
medical serv ices. 

Not only do the govern ment-wide financial statements include the City of Bossier City itself which is the 
primary govern ment, but also its component units, City Court of Bossier City, Bossier City M arshal's Office, 

Metropolitan Planning Commission, an d Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority. Although  these component 
units are legally separate, their operational or financial relationship with the City of Bossier City make th e City 
of Bossier City financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately 
from the finan cial information presented for the primary govern ment itself. 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 

resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Bossier City, like other state 
an d local govern ments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate complian ce with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Bossier City can be divided into three categories: governmental 
fu nds, proprietary  funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
govern m ental activities in the govern ment-wide financial statements. However, unlike th e government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fu nd financial statements focus on near-term  inflows an d outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as  on balances of spendable resources at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
inform ation may be useful in evaluating the City of Bossier City near-term financing requirements. 

Because the foc us of governmental funds is narrower than that of the governm ent-wide finan cial statements, it is 
useful to compare the inform ation presented for govern mental funds with sim ilar inform ation presented for 
govern m ental activities in th e govern m ent-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers m ay better understand 
the long-term  impact of the City of Bossier City's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund 
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Balance Sheet and the governm ental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Bossier City maintains 22 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental funds Balance Sheet and in the governmental fu nds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Chan ges in Fund Balances for the General Fund, Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund, Arena Special 

Revenue Fund, Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund, Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects Fund, and Public 
Health and Safety Perm anent Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data for the other 16 
govern mental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fu nd data for each of these 

nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form  of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Bossier City adopts an  annual appropriated budget for its General Fund an d certain special revenue 
fu nds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. 

Proprietary funds. The City of Bossier City maintains 3 different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds 
are used to report th e same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. Th e City of Bossier City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewerage, sanitation, and 
emergency medical services. Intern al serv ice funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate 
costs internally among the City of Bossier City's various fu nctions. The City of Bossier City uses intern al 
service fu nds to account for its dental health care and worker's compensation. Because these serv ices 
predom inantly benefit govern mental rather than business-type fu nctions, they have been included within 
governm enta l activities in th e govern m ent-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the govern ment-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail. Proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sewerage 

operations which is considered to be a major fund of City of Bossier City. Data from the other 2 proprietary 
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor 
proprietary  funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

Conversely, both intern al service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary 
fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the intern al serv ice funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements elsewhere in the report. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the be nefit of parties outside the City 
of Bossier City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Bossier City 's own programs. Th e accounting 
used for fiduciary fu nds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

Th e notes provide additional information that is essential to a fu ll 
understanding of the data provided in the govern ment-wide and fu nd financial statements. 

Other inform ation. In addition to th e basic financial statements an d accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary inform ation concern ing the City of Bossier City's progress in funding 
its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees and compliance with budgets for its major funds. 
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The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor 
proprietary funds, and internal service funds are presented immed iately following the required supplementary 

information on pensions and budgetary comparisons. 

Financial Analysis of Government-wide Activities 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the 
case of the City of Bossier City, assets exceed liabilities by $286,902,163 at the close of the most recent fiscal 

year. 

Th e largest portion of the City of Bossier City's net assets totaling approximately $159 million (55.3%) reflects 
its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, streets, drainage, machinery, and equipment), less any 
related  debt used to acquire those as sets that is still outstanding. The City of Bossier City uses these capital 
as sets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
the City of Bossier City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that 
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 

cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Current and other assets 

Capital as sets 

Total as sets 

Current and other liabilities 

Long-term  liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 

Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total net as sets 

City of Bossier City's Net Assets 

December 31, 2002 

Governm ental 
activities 

$ 141,336,942 

175,178,869 

316,515,811 

5,476,664 

91,378,212 

96,854,876 

115,340,957 

28,662,311 

75,657,667 

$ 219,660,935 

6 

Business-type 
activities  Total 

25,521,401 

73,128,729 

98,650,130 

1,136,754 

30,272,148 

31,408,902 

43,209,460 

1,666,172 

22,365,596 

67,241,228 

166,858,343 

248,307,598 

415,165,941 

6,613~18 

121,650,360 

128,263,778 

158,550,417 

30,328,483 

98,023,263 

286,902,163 
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10.6% of net assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Debt 
Service Funds account for $11,489,052 of the total of restricted net assets. The remaining balance ar e monies 
restricted for public health and safety. State law requires the proceeds from the sale of th e Bossier M edical 
Center be held in perpetuity, however, the investment earnings may be spent each year for purp oses of public 
health and safety. As of December 31, 2002, th e nonexpendable portion was $17,911,368 an d th e expendable 
balance, which represents unspent investm ent earnings, was  $928,063. 

The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets of $98,023,263 is used to meet the City of Bossier City's 
ongoing obligations to citizens an d creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Bossier City is able to report positive balances in all three 
categories of net as sets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governm ental and 
business-type activities. 

Th e City of Bossier City's net assets increased by $20,665,461 during the current fiscal year. Key elements of 
this increas e are as follows: 
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City of Bossier City's Changes in Net Assets 

G overnm ental Business-type 
activities activities Total 

Revenues: 

Program  revenues: 

Charges for services $ 
Grants and contributions 

General revenues: 

Sales taxes 

Other taxes 

Gaming 

Other general revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 

General Government 

Public safety 

Highways and streets 

Culture and recreation 

City Court an d M arshal 

Paym ents to component units 

Interest on long-term debt 

W ater and sewerage 

Sanitation 

Emergency M edical Services 

Total expenses 

Increase in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year  

5,237,407 15,963,842 

4,075,713 

29,341,705 

12,10~366 
15,234,198 

4,348,791 

70,338,180 

9,423,153 

25,678,549 

3,997,047 

7,155,218 

1,073,671 

132,650 

3,262,080 

50,722,368 

19,615,812 

200.045.123 

1,673,836 

17,637,678 

10,885,174 

2,364,900 

3,337,955 

16,588,029 

1,049,649 

66,191,579 

67,241,228 

21,201,249 

4,075,713 

29,341,705 

12,10~366 
15,234,198 

6,022,627 

87,975,858 

9,423,153 

25,678,549 

3,997,047 

7,155,218 

1,073,671 

132,650 

3,262,080 

10,885,174 

2,364,900 

3,337,955 

67,310,397 

20,665,461 

266,236,702 

286,902,!63 

Revenues for the City of Bossier City 's governmental activities for the year ended December 31, 2002 w ere 
$70.3 million compared to $69.7 million in 2001. 

Program revenues for governmental activities increased $1 m illion in 2002 compared to 2001 primarily as a 
result of an increase of $640,000 in fees an d rental revenues at the Arena. In addition, the City of Bossier City 
received $390,000 more in federal grants as a result of receiving hazard mitigation funds. 
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In Iolal general revenues increased. General revenues, specifically sales mx (41.7?'b), is tile largest component of 
revellues. 

[] Sales taxes increased only $546,000 duc to a slow do~,la in economic conditions as rcllccted in Ihe 
national economy. 

t~ Other taxes increased $530,000 mainly as a result of an increase in total assessed property values which 
increases tile total property tax revenue. 

Increases in lag. revenues were offset by a decline ill investment earnings of $ 
decreased rates of i'cltll-rl i)tl in'~cshrlents due to econonlic conditions. 

7.~ 

17.2t~~ 

Revc~:ue by Source - G ~rverlm ~c!~t::H A d iviiies 
6.2%  

21.7%  

41.7% 

[] ~.lleS Taxes 

~ (;am ing 

[] O ther "raxrs 

[] ('harges for services 

[:](~l'anls and ~ollhil)ulions 

[] O|he.r llt'llerill revellues 

The cost of all govern mental activities this year was $50.7 million, an increase of $2.2 million. The key lhclors 
fbr the increase were a SI.2 million increase as a result of additional hiring of public safety personnel and salary' 
incrcases and a $642,000 increase in claims expense. 
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The City of Bossier City's largest programs are public safety, general government, and culture and recreation. 
Th e graph below shows the expenses and program revenues generated by govern mental activities: 

Business-type activities 

Charges for services for the City of Bossier City's business-type activities were $16 million, an increase of $2.9 
million. 

~ W ater an d Sewerage revenues increased $991,000 as a result of an  increase in water and sewer rates effective 
July 2002. 

~ Emergency M edical Serv ices revenues increased $1 million as a result of an  increase in the base rate and 
additional charges for other medical supplies and procedures performed during transports of patients. 

~ Sanitation revenues increas ed $1 million as a result of an increas e in the sanitation basic service charge 
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R evenue by Source - Business-type 

A ctivities 

16.3% ~ 63.4% 

Expenses and Program revenues Business-|ype Activities 

"l'h: ~nst: of these activities ~er~ $16.6 million, an increase of $1d~ m illion. 1he \Vat~..r aml SL.,,~erage fired 
;Igcotlnl~.'d l'~)l" ~1 Illi[Jil.)ll of Ih~ i[1cl'CflsC ;]~ I'L'p;tiI'~, :lilt[ IIKlilIICII;IIW~ (1~ 1S tll]d i[][el'~-'.~[ exp~.'l]S~:' costs il]('l'~.'tiSCd 
.~2'!,,. The I=tlit.'l'gs.'f~~~" M ~'dical SelI~[CeS ["Lllld ;.iCCOlilltcd I~t ~,7,":7,00I) ,,[" Tile iIICre:l:~~ :is :! T'L:SIIII (~J';l 1"~20Ih~c[lliorl 
ot personnel co:-;t: fiom the g~:ncra[ fund tn the t(mergenc

_x M edicn[ Services Ftlnd ;'~nd additional w rite-oll~ o1 
rccci',ablcs. 
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Financial Analysis of the City of Bossier City 's Funds 

Governm ental Funds 

As noted earlier, the City of Bossier City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate complian ce with 
fmance-related legal requirements. 

The focus of the City of Bossier City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balan ces of spendable resources. Such information is us eful in assessing the City of Bossier City 's 
fmancing requiremen ts. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as  a useful measure of a City's net 
resour ces available for spending at th e end of th e fiscal year . 

~ As of the close of the current fisca l year, the City of Bossier City 's governmental funds reported a 
combined ending fund balance of $132,490,611 an increase of $35,758,824 in comparison with the 
prior fiscal year. Of this amount, $14,387,410 million or 10.9%  was unreserved, un designated an d 
available for sp en ding. $86,371,719 mi llion or 65.2% was unreserved but designated for subsequent 
years' expen ditures. Th e remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indica te that it is not available for 

new spending because it has already been committed  (1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of 
the prior period ($3,050,055), (2) to pay debt service ($9,820,560), (3) to generate income to fund 
public health an d safety expenses ($18,788,583), or (4) for other restricted purposes ($72,284). 
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Bossier City. At the end of the current 

fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $5,759,394. The total (undesignated) is 
available for spending at th e City Council's discretion. The fund balance of the City of Bossier City's 
General Fund increased by $1.3 million. A key factor in this growth is an increase in transfers of 
interest earned on riverboat gaming fu nds 

~ The Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund has a total fu nd balance of $32,474,293 all of which is 
unreserv ed but designated for subsequent years' expenditures. Riverboat gaming revenues collected 
prior to 1999 were accumulated in this fund until a base amount of $30 million was attained, as 
required by City ordinance. A net decrease of $891,197 occurred during the current fiscal year  
because investment earnings were not sufficient to cover all uses of the funds on City projects. 

~ The Arena Special Revenue Fund accounts for the operations of the CenturyTel Arena. Th e Arena has 
a fund balance of $180,140, which reflected an increas e of $125,334 in 2002. The increase was a 
result of increasing revenues by approximately $700,000 while maintaining expenses at th e same level 
as  prior year. Revenues were increas ed as a result of additional shows booked in 2002 for which th ere 
were no increase in fixed costs. 

~ Th e Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $17,159,510 all of which is 
unreserved but designated for subsequent years' expenditures. A net increase of $8,047,190 occurred 
during the current fiscal year. Riverboat gam ing fees collected are accumulated in th is fund. Those 

fees remained flat from prior year. Expenditures in this fund are for specific projects as outlined in the 
City of Bossier City's capital projects budget and are not expected to be similar from year to year. 

~ The Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects Fund was established in the current fiscal period to account for 
the proceeds and expenditures of $29,260,000 of Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds. Th e fund 
balan ce at year end was $29,145,045. The City of Bossier City intends to use these funds for capital 
improvements for riverfront an d downtown development. 

~ Th e Public Health and Safety Perman ent Fund has a total fund balance of $18,788,583 all of which is 
reserved for public health an d safety. The fund experienced a net decrease in fund balance of 
$806,449 as a result of spending an d a decline in investment earnings. 

Proprietary Funds 

W ater and Sewerage net assets increased by $741,796. Th is change was a result of a 15% increase in the water 
an d sewer rates effective July 2002. 

General Fund Budgetary H ighlights 

Th e budget policy of the City of Bossier City complies with state law, as amended, and as set forth in Louisian a 
Revised Statutes Title 39, Chapter 9, Louisian a Local Government Budget Act (LSA-R.S. 39:1301 et seq.). 
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The original budget for the General Fund of the City of Bossier City was adopted on December 4, 2001. No 
amendments were made. Differences between the budget and the actual results of the Geueral Fund is as 
follows: 

Revenues 

~ Sales and use tax revenues were estimated to increase based on estimates from the Bossier Parish 
Sales and Use Tax Division. Actual results were less than budget by $82,845 as a result of a general 
slow down in spending. 

~ Ad valorem tax revenues were expected to be sim ilar to prior year revenues. Actual revenues were 

more than budget by $511,167 as a result of higher than projected assessed values related to new 
construction. 

~ Budgeted revenues for Louisiana Downs were higher than actual results by $141,361. The City of 
Bossier City anticipated increased revenues related to installation of slot machines at the racetrack. 
Due to a change in ownership, slot machines were not added in 2002. 

Expenditures 

~ Engineering expenditures were under budget by $98,918 and Police department expenditures were 
under budget by $495,009 as a result of the postponement of hiring additional personnel. 

Capital Assets and Debt Adm inistration 

Capital Assets: The City of Bossier City's investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2002 amounts to 
$248,307,598 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and 
im provements, streets, drainage, furniture and equipment, and construction in progress. The table below shows 
the value at the end of the fiscal year. 

City of Bossier City 's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Land and land improvem ents 

Buildings and structures 

Equipm ent and vehicles 

W ater and reservoir treatment plant 

Transm ission and distribution system 

Infrastructure 

Construction in progress - buildings 

Total 

4 

Governm ental 
activities 

Business-type 
activities 

861,184 

2,498,695 

37,584,948 

29,865,288 

45,563,536 

6,634,913 2,318,614 

73,128,729 
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Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following: 

~ The purchase of $6.8 million of land related to the Riverwalk Development and Traffic Street widening. 

~ The purchas e of $1.3 m illion of land for future M unicipal Building Complex expansion. 

~ Construction in progress of $2.7 m illion related to the widening of Traffic Street. 

~ Construction in progress of$1 m illion related to the engineering and design of Riverwalk Development. 

Long-term debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Bossier City had total debt outstanding of 
$118,847,221. The City of Bossier City has no general bonded debt outstanding. The following table 
summarizes bonds outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001. 

Revenue bonds 

City of Bossier City's 
O utstanding Debt 

Governm ental 
aetivitles 

Business-type 
activities 

$ 88,927,952 29,919,269 

During the current fiscal period for governmental activities, the City of Bossier City issued $29,260,000 of 
Public Im provem ent Sales Tax Bonds, Series, 2002 for the purpose of purchasing, constructing, acquiring, 
extending, or improving public works. The City intends to use these funds for capital improvements for 
riverfront and downtown development. The bonds were issued at a premium of $1,032,952. 

Also during the current fiscal period for business-type activities, the City of Bossier City issued $12,245,000 of 
Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 and $4,165,000 of Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002. The 
proceeds of the bonds are to be used to fund additions and improvements to the utility system as well as refund 
$4,350,000 of the 1992 Utility Revenue Bonds. 

The City of Bossier City's revenue bonds were upgraded from a rating of A3 to A2 by M oody's Investors 
Service. Standard and Poor's Rating Service upgraded the City's revenue bonds from A to A+. 

For additional inform ation regarding capital assets and long-term debt, see the notes to the basic financia 
statem ents. 

Econom ic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The following economic factors were considered when the budget for FY 2003 was presented to the Council: 

~ Three riverboats operate in Bossier City and represent some 4,500 direct jobs and another 4,000 indirect jobs. 
at restaurants, hotels, and retail stores in this region. Major commercial developments includes continued 
expansion of the Port of Shreveport-Bossier which now includes a cargo wharf, a heavy rail sidetrack, a 
petroleum wharf, a 50-ton bridge crane, and a 30,000 square foot storage shed. Also Barksdale Air Force 

Base, another major factor in our regional economy, had over $50 million in new construction during the 
pas t year. 
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~ The Bossier School system is recognized statewide as one of the best systems in the state and achievement 
test scores are consistently higher than other parts of the state. 

~ For the year 2003, the City of Bossier City has projected a 2% increase in sales tax and property tax 
revenues and we intend to continue to monitor and adjust for any unanticipated local downtums in the 
economy. 

Requests for Inform ation 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Bossier City 's finan ces for all 
those with an interest in the City of Bossier City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in th is report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Director of 

Finanee of the City of Bossier City, P.O. Box 5337, Bossier City, LA 71171, or by calling (318) 741-8525. 
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Assets 

CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Statement of Net Assets 

December 31, 2002 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Receivables, net 

Due from component unit 
Intern al balances 

Prepaid items and other assets 
Inventories 

Net pension asset 

Bond issue costs, net 

Restricted assets! 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Accrued interest 
Capital assets: 

Land and constnttaion in progress 
Other cap ital ~sets, net o f depreciation 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Accrued liab ilities 

Accrued interest payab le 
Deferred revenue 

De posits and deferred charges 

Nonm rrent liab ilities: 

Due within one year 

Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital as sets, net of ralated debt 

Restricted for: 

Debt sen, ice - expendable 

Public Health mid Safety- nonexpendable 

Public Health and Safety- expe ndable 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

See accompan ying notes to financial statements. 

primary Government 

Governmental 

activities 

2,251,464 

465,634 

404,225 

512,429 

1,842,912 

5,703,957 

85,674,255 

5,340,957 

9,822,880 

17,911,368 

928,063 

75,657,667 

$ 219,660,935 

Business-type 

activities Total 

752,610 

770,746 

8,175,492 

186,813 

3,179,798 

69,948,93 I 

98,650,130 

401,752 

203,308 

373,683 

43,209,460 

1,666,172 

22,365,596 

~965,506 
9,717,424 
4,018,997 

64,948 

1,012,893 

285,645 

854,985 

1,704,319 

770,746 

8,276,067 

186,813 

58,473,861 

89,833.737 

415.165.94 

6,927,062 

114,723,298 

128,263,778 

11,489,052 

17,911,368 

928,063 

98,023,263 

286,902,163 

Component 

uni~ 

892,739 

5,789~92 
40,373 

86,004 

6,808,508 

4,180 

99,560 

110,000 

5,195,000 

5,408,740 

86,004 

235,312 

1,078,452 

1,399,768 



FH ctloastpHrqemms 
I~rimal~ p vem mm t: 
Oov~n,nBra~1 acf~kk's" 
Gcne*~l gov~ t 
public safety 

Higl~ s and struts 
C~  ~  recreation 

Cay Court and Marshal 
paymma to component ~ ts 
Int~'cst on long-leon debt 

To~! gov~ mm tal nc~iviti~ 

BUS~  activities 
W a~r add S~,ma'ag~ 

F.nw/$c~cy Medical S~o6~  

Total busbies-type aea,dfi~ 

Total pdmary ~ v~ lent 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Activities 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

O~ aag Cawtal 

Charge r or graea |ud granB and 
~  ~ ata~ a~ s eon~rlbutioas 

9,423,153 
25,678,549 

3,997,O47 
7,t55,218 
i,073,671 

132,650 

3,262,080 

1,910,465 

3,326,942 

159.475 

,198,240 

.686,631 

Nel (~XFCnm ) r~enue and 
~haugn ie na issas 

C, ov~ m~t 

Govenm~lal Busia~v~pe 
activi~n ac6vi(i~ 

551,033 (8~712,645) 
--  (22,569,844) 

480,334 (3,516,713) 
--  (2,141,645) 

0,o~3,6~1) 
--  032,650) 
--  0,262,080) 

50,722~68. .. 5,237,407 3r044r346 1,031,367 (41,409.248) 

10,885,174 I0041,818 

2,364,90O 2,608p53 
3~337,955 3,313,671 

16,38~029 15,963,842 

(8.712,645) 
(22,569,844) 
(3.5.6,713) 
(2:4L64~) 

032,65o) 
(3,262,080) 

(843,356) ($43~356) 
243,453 243,453 

(24,284) (24,284) 

(~24,187) (6u, lsD 

Cemponelal units: 
Bog~  public 3"hast ~in~cln8 AuLhofi~ $ 422073 44g,245 
CilyC~ rts 114,631 317,045 
City Ivlar~al 173,898 141,508 

Meh'opolitan Pla iting Commission 1~5,177 
.. 

35,839 

Geae~l ~  
T~ : 
Property t~x~ levied f~ g~ l purposes 
Sales tax-e~ levied f~ gemn-al p~  
Ssl~ toxes I~ied for espied projects 
~ad~ ~  levied for debl ~ i~ 
gal~ tlt~  levied  for lamsi~  pl~  
F~  ~  
L~ aes ~  ~ t~ 

Mt~g~ c.lmca~ 
Shared 
Investment ~ ings 
Paym~ts from City of Bossi~ City 

Misc~.ll~ s 
Transfers 

Total general ~  mid 
traasf~  

Charge in ae~ aa~e~ 

Net ~ ,s - bcginaing (re*taw, d) 

Net assets - ending 

870,318 

431,676 
315,406 

221,0t6 

8,246,O66 
8,090+235 
9,163,005 
6,329,078 
5.759,387 
1,808,469 

2,P.45,831 
5.234.198 
323,O47 

2,850,967 

29.548 

609,442 

1,673,941 535,682 

(4~,164) 499,1~4 

8,246,066 

8,090,2:~5 
9,163,0U5 
6,329,078 
5,759,387 
1,808,469 

2,O4 5,83 I 
15,234,19g 
352,595 

3,4~ ,4~  

~209,6~ 

Compoa~ t 
uui~ 

2~172 
202,414 

(32,39o) 
(149,338) 

66,325 
22~815 
32,650 

16,$3~ 

19,615,812 

200~O4 5,123 

$ 219,660,935 

1.049,649 

66.191.579 

67,241.228 

20,665,461 

266,236,702 

286,902 163 

285.186 

I.II4~582 

1,399,768 



A~ets G~ l 

Cash mad ca~ equivale~t~ 
lnvcstmtn. 
R~ ivabl~, n~t 
Due from mher furds 
Due from ~ompon~t unit 
Dun frem ea~r go~ ents 
Prepaid thnns ~d eth~ ~s~s 
lnv~tccies, at c~~ 
th~ rn~  - resU/c~  

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Balance Sheet 

Governm ental Funds 

December 31, 2002 

Ri~ rb~ t 

Gamthg Spedal 

R~ ue Fn d 

798.431 

31.619.142 
324.989 

A~,a 
Sp~  
R~ ue 

Fund 

1.689.498 

318.073 

262,580 

I~ve~boJt Sales Tax 
Gaming Capital Bond Capital 

e~~,~_t, r.nd 

39H161 
5.767.832 

1.357.595 

712.944 
28.233.705 

301953 

PubllcHu lth 

H d sarety Otb~ Total 
Permanent Gov~ menlal Gov~ mest~ 
Fund Funds Funds 

458246 
8.147.228 

186,522 

100.575 

Total ~sets $ 7.607.977 32~74~562 ~270rl5l 17)523.588 29.248.602 18.892.571 30.265.256 138.550.707 

LL~bB;ti~ and Fnnd Bal~  

Liabili6~: 
A~  payable $ 
Aecnl~ liabilifi~ 
Due to other f~ ds 
Defi ed r~ ue 

Deposits ~d deferced eh~g~ 

270.M 9 268.269 
365.634 
234.838 

824.615 685.595 
1.018.297 

364,078 3,988 
~ OOO 

Total llabiliti~ 1.695.936 268269 2.090.011 364.078 103.557 103.955 1.434.257 6,060.096 

F~ d bal~ : 
R~ ed for: 
DeM s~ i~ 

lnv~tori~ 
Pr~ aid it~  

80,363 
72,284 

Publi~ Health and Safe(y 
Umeserved deslgnmed fm 
~ra~q ucnt years' ~ p(~llt~es 

Unto ~d: 

Undm~ lm:; 5.759.394 
Dcsignalcd re.For ted in nonmaj~ 

262.580 

($2,440) 

29.145.045 

9.820.560 
1.227.775 

77.299511 

5.676.954 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIA NA 

Reconciliation of the Govern m ental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Assets 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governm ental activities in the statement of 
net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governm ental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the govern mental 
funds 

Governm enta l capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Other assets used in governm ental activities that are not financial 
resources and th erefore are not reported in the govern mental 
funds 

Unamortized bond issuan ce costs 

Net pension assets represent th e excess cumulative contributions 
to pension plan s and are not considered as financial resour ces 
for governm ental funds 

Policem en's Pension and Relief Fund 

Some of the City of Bossier City's property taxes will be collected after 
year-end but are not available soon enough to pay for the current 
period's expenditures and th erefore are deferred in the governm ental 
funds 

Long-term liabilities including bonds payable are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the 
governm enta l fu nds 

Accm ed interest payable 
Compensated absences 
Claim s 
Bonds , notes, an d loans payable 
Net pension obligation 

Intern al service funds  are used by m anagement to charge the costs of 
certain activities to individual fu nds. The assets and liabilities of 
the internal service funds are repo rted with governm ental activities 

Net assets of governm ental activities 

See accom pan ying notes to financial statements. 

132,490,611 

205,627,208 

(30,448,339) 175,178,869 

951,709 

854,985 

975,603 

(404,225) 
(881,497) 
(642,000) 

(88,927,952) 
(87,611) (90,943,285) 

152~443 

219,660,935 

20 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Statem ent of Revenues , Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governm ental Funds 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 2002 

R~ u~ GimerJ! 

Lie~  and permits 
Iraergovm mta-aal 
Video pok~ 
F~  m d rentals 
F'~  aad pemdties 
R~iag ~ mis~ion - Louiai~ a 
Downs 

Gaming 
lnvesun~ t e~,raings 
Miscellaneous 

Total ~v~qu~ 

Ex~ dau~  

C~ t: 
C~-~rat govmmm~ 
Public saf~  
Highways ~ d 
Culture ~d rec,~afi on 
City Cou~ m d Marshal 

De~ sefvic~ 
~ n~pal 

Capital outlay 
Paymmts t~ ~ po~ t un~  

Total cxpe~ ittues 

Exe.--~  (d~dm~) of 
revenues ov~ (under) 
cx~c~ndilur~ 

Other Fin~timg $ou~  (U~ ) 

Trmtst'crs ia 
Tnmsf~  ma 
Lo~rt~  dd>t issu~l 

1,130,637 

ISg 639 

53333 
1,272,639 

II~v,,rbo~ 
Gamlag - 

R~enuu 
Fund 

1,037,740 

3,110,049 

Riv~boat fal~ Tsx 
Gaming Bond 
C~,ilal capital 

Pro~ects Fund p~jec~l Fumd 

14,500.60"/ 
44g.652 400280 

Oth~ 
Gov~umm lJ.I 

FUn~ 

15,492,083 

2,397 139 

216,$93 
24,177 

Total 

Gov~ m~ l 

FR dS 

39,327.341 
2,045,831 
4,39g,760 
544,952 

3,326,942 
1,154,8]4 

--  --  185,639 
--  14 500,607 

598,499 910,962 3,449.466 
157,152 97,$50 115271641 

30,592,576 1,037740 3,110,049 15r4291593 400,2g0 755,651 19,139,104 70,464,993 

7,998,555 
23~,921,766 
1,049,714 
1,309,$90 
1,033,5"/7 

132,650 

35 446,152 

7,382,403 
13,807 
25,2ol 

~ 2,1~  
710,508 

574,026 
13,390 

2,750,00O 
3,123,"/51 
9,913,90~ 

3,750,000 

3,237,558 
17,321,54]8 

132,650 

(4,853,576) It0371740 125.334 x~04"/tPgO 261,272 293,551 I,O531525 5,965,o36 

6,136,754 

(I ~r~8,9~7) 

Total otb~ fi~ cing 
~ e~~ and ~  6.136r754 

Net dreaR~ in fmld 

balav.ces 1.283.178 (g91.197) 

Fund bnl~  - bcginalng 

Fund bal~  - m dlng 

(1,409,179) 
30,2~2,952 

(I, 100,000) 
2,468,516 

(4,~:,~: ~ a) 
8,6o5,27o 
(9.104.434) 
30,292,952 

125~34 8,047.190 29.145.045 (806,449) (I.144,277) 35.758.&7.4 

4,628,$63 33,365,490 54506 9.112,320 
--  

--  19,595,032 29,975,276 96,731,7117 

$ 5t912~041 32,474,293 , ,, 
180,140 

. 
17,159,510 29,145,045 1878S,583 

.. 
28,~0~999 132,490,611 



 

CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Net change in fund balan ces - total governm ental funds 
Am ounts reported for governm ental activities in the statem ent of 
activities are different because: 
Governm ental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statem ent of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated 
over th eir estim ated useful lives and reported as depreciation 

expense. 
Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Revenues reported in the statem ent of activities which are not 
reported in governm ental funds because they do not provide 

current financial resources. This adjustment is to recognize 
th e net chan ge in unavailable revenues. 
(Property taxes) 

Th e issuan ce of long-tern1 debt provides current financial resources 
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of 
long-term debt consum es the current fmancial resources of 
govenm aental fu nds . Neither transaction, however, has an y 
effect on net assets. Also, govern m ental fu nds report the effect 
of issuance costs, prem ium s, discounts, and sim ilar items when 
debt is fftrst issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
am ortized in the statem ent of activities. The detail of these 
differences in th e treatm ent of long-term  and related item s is as 
follows: 
Debt proceeds 
Issuance costs 
Principal paym ents 

Th e chan ges in other long-term assets and liabilities are reported in 
the statem ent of activities but do not affect current financial 
resources of governm ental funds . The changes are as follows: 
Policem en's Pension and Relief Fun d net as set 
Firem en's Pension and Relief Fund net obligation 

Some expenses reported in th e statem ent of activities do not require 
th e use of current financial resources and, th erefore, are not 
reported as expenditures in governm ental funds. 
Am ortization of bond issue costs 
Increase in com pensated absences 
Increase in accrued interest 
Increase in claim s 

Intern al service fu nds are used by m anagement to char ge the costs of 
certain activities to individual funds. The net revenue of the internal 
serv ice fu nds is reported with governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of govem mental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

35,758,824 

16,000,419 

(5,208~502) 10,791,917 

68,899 

(30,292,952) 
137,615 

3,750,000 (26,405,337) 

206,628 
96,824 303,452 

(75,087) 
(166,774) 
(87,050) 
(642,000) (970,911) 

68,968 

$ 19,615,812 



Assets 

Curce~t assets: 
Cash an d cash equivalents 
Investments 
Restricted: 
Cash ~ttg[ cash ~quivo.le~ts 
Investments 

Receivables, net: 
Customers (net o f allowance for uncollectible 
accounts of $1,014,478) 

Accrued interest 
Other 

P~:paid items 
|nv~ tcci~s 

Total current assets 

Nonc~ t assets: 
Resttictad: 

Investments 
Accrued interest 

Capital assets: 
Lend and land improvements 
Construction in process 
Water rcser/oir and ucatmcnt plant 
Transmission and distribution system 
Eo, uip~~nt 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) 

Deferred bond costs, at cost less amortization 
Other deferred charges 

Total other assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Currem liabilities (payable from current ~sets): 
Accounts payable 
Accro~  liabilities 
Retainages payable 
Due to other funds 
Cuslomer deposits 
Accrued  claims 
Compensated ab sences 

Total current liabilities 

(payable from current assets) 
C uvre.at ilifldlitics (payabb: from t~stricte.d assets): 

Accrued interest on revenue bonds 
Current portion of long-term debt 

Total current liabiJitirs 
(payable from restricted assets) 

Total eu~em I]eb ilities 

Nonrurrent liabilities: 
Compa nsated  absences 
Bonds and notes pa yable 

Total noncunent liab ilities 

Total tiabitilies 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, net of re lazed deb t 
Restricted for debt set~/~  
Unrestricted  

Total net assets 

See accompanying notes Io financial statements. 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds 

H d 
Sewerage 

3,093,990 

770.746 
642,937 

1,198,112 
34,173 
15.135 

Enterprise 
Funds 

888,538 
819 

140,320 

3,171,962 

770,746 
642,937 

2,086,650 
34,992 
155.455 

213,36j 

Governm ental 
Activities 
inte~ sl 

ServieeFunds 

14,535 
575,611 

541,980 

7,532,555 
186,813 

, 
73,029,852 

752,610 
208,333 

96(3,943 

91,710,163 

97~78,617 

369,433 
33,584 
106,160 
I S,T/7 
158,011 

1,242,519 
(1343,642) . 

9g,g77 

1,206,526 

7,532,555 
186,813 

373,683 
L040.U(X) 

1~13,683 
2211,223 

43,1 I0,583 
1.666.172 
21,713,045 

66,489,800 

383.649 

71~49 

71,449 

455,098 

98,877 

652,551 

373,683 
1,040,000 

1A|3,693 

140,531 

839 152 

979,683 

43,209,460 
1,666,172 
22,365,596 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIA NA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 2002 

Operating Revenues 

Charges for services pledged as security 

for revenue bonds 

Ch,~rges for se~iees 

M iscellaneous 

Tetal ope rating revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Personal services 

Supplies 

Utilities 

Repairs and maintenance 

ContraeU~  expenses 
Provision for bad debt 

M iscellaneous 
Claim s 

Depreciation an d amortization 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperatlng Revenues (Expenses) 

Investment earnings 

Interest expense 

Amortization 
Intergovem mental 

Gain on refunding 

Fiscal charges 

Total nonoperating revenues 

(expenses) 

Income before contributions 

and transfers 
Transfers in 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets- beginning 

Total net ~sets - ending 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Bualness-type Activities Enterprise Funds 

W ater 

and 

10,041,818 

295,067 

10,336,885 

3,649,860 

849,661 

680,516 
606,864 

9,028,217 

1,308,668 

605,921 

(1,081,509) 
(737,114) 

185,000 

08,034) 

~ 1,796  

O ther 

Enterprise 

Funds Total 

--  10,041,818 

5,922,024 5,922,024 

55,615 350,682 

5,977,639 16,314,524 

74.147 

5,699,450 

278,189 

29.664 

307,853 

6,022,308 

1,098,917 

715,304 

643,316 

1,866,332 

861,681 

1,296,092 

14,727,667 

1,586,857 

609,442 

(I,084,914) 
(737,414) 
29,548 

185,000 

(38,034) 

Governmental 

Activities 

Internal 

Service Funds 

75,001 

33,642 

1,305,361 

2,514,004 

66,469 

2,499 

550,485 

499,164 

68,968 

1,049,649 68,968 



CITY O F BOSSIER CITY , LOUISIAN A 

Statem ent of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from operations $ 
Payments ~ suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Claims paid 

Other ~eceipts (payments) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 

1lltergovefnmmlta[ fevennes 

Net cash provided by noncapital 
financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Proceeds from issuance of debt 
Acquisition and construction ofcapRal assets 
Principal paid on debt 
Interest paid 
Fiscal charges 
Payment of debt issuance costs 
Transfers in 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital 
and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investments 
Interest received 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing 
activities 

Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds 

9,809,45 I 

(3,899,176) 
(3,588,121) 

338,408 

2,660,562 

12,937,950 

(3,982,308) 
(1,210,000) 
(903,059) 
(38,034) 
(704,359) 
499.164 

Other 
Enterprise 

Funds Total 

5,618,353 

(3,226,257) 
(2,279,139) 

15,427,804 

(7,125~433) 
(5,867,260) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Internal 
Service Funds 

2,580,473 

0,406,272) 

(15,563,554) 
453,367 

(15,563.554) 
456,069 

(574,490) 
1,378 

Net inctegse (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents (5,850,271) 77,972 (5,772,299) (693,694) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 9,715,007 --  9,715,007 708,229 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 3,864,736 77,972 3,942,708 14,535 

Noneash items: 

Amortization $ 737,414 --  737,414 --  
Gain on refunding 185,000 --  185,000 --  

(Continued) 



CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIA NA 

Statem ent of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 

Year ended December 3 I, 2002 

Business-type Activities Enterprise Funds 

Other 

Enterprise 

Funds Total 

Governmental 

Activities 

Internal 

Service Funds 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Operating income $ 1,308.668 278.189 1,586,857 66.047 

Adjustments to leconcile operating income (loss) to net 
cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for bad debts 

{Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable 

Other receivable 

Inventories 

Prepaid items and other assets 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payab le 

Accrued liab ilities 

Due to other funds 

Customers' deposits 

Claims and judgments 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
ope rating activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2,149,570 

129,929 

(363,059) 
19,230 

21,717 

8,334 

(536,468) 
(93,899) 
15,777 

763 

74,147 

731.752 

(1,035,423) 
(85,819) 

26,598 

93,309 

(33,626) 

2,223,717 

861,681 

(I,398,482) 
(66,589) 
21,717 

8,334 

(509,870) 
(59O) 

(17,849) 
763 

(305,337) 

107,708 

11.000 

49.127 



 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables: 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Statem ellt of Fiduciary Net Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 

December 31, 2002 

Interest receivable 
Other 

Due from other funds 
Due from Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund 
Due from Fireman 's Pension and Relief Fund 
Investments, at fair value: 
U .S. governm ent securities 
Certificates of deposit 

Total investm ents 

Oth er assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

AccountS payable 
Due to City of Bossier City 
Due to other fu nds 
Taxes paid under protest 
Refu ndable deposits 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Held in trust for pension benefits 

See accompanying notes to finan cial statements 

Pension 
Trust 
Funds 

$ 3,039,057 

145,266 

29,931,513 
641,473 

30,572,986 

33,758,309 

89,224 

Consolidated 
Sales Tax 

Agency Fund 

1,289,888 

1,032 
234,838 
26,767 
62,457 

1,614,982 

14,759 

324,162 
1,224,054 

Total 

4,328,945 

145,266 
1,032 

234,838 
26,767 
62,457 

29,931,513 
641,473 

30,572,986 

1.000 

14,759 
89,224 
324,162 

1,224,054 
--  52,007 52,007 

89,224 1,614,982 1,704,206 

$ 33,669,085 33,669,085 



Contributions from City: 
Sales taxes, net 
Fire insurance premiums 
Employer's contributions 
City Court fines 
City liquor licenses 

Total contributions 

Em ployee contributions 
Investment earnings 
Less investm ent expens e 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 

Pension Trust Funds 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

N et investment earnings 

Total additions 

Pensions and benefits 
Adm inistrative expenses 

Total deductions 

Chan ge in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net as sets - ending 

Additions 

Ded uctions 

See accompan ying notes to financial statements. 
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5,759,387 
122,561 
27,977 
229,453 
5.751 

6,145,129 

27,977 
3,352,160 
(70,870) 

3,281,290 

9.454.396 

5,046,343 
30,542 

5,076,885 

4,377,511 

29,291,574 

33,669,085 



Assets 

CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIAN A 

Statem ent of Net Assets 

Com ponent Units 

December 31, 2002 

Cash and cash equivalents 

lnves~nents 

Accounts receivable 

Accrued interest 

Capital assets: 

Other capitol assets, net of depreciation 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Accrued  interest payable 

Noncurrent liab ilities: 

Ouc within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 

Unres~ictod 

4,233 
5,603,949 

City 

Courts 

city 

M arshal 

M etropolitan 

Planning 

Commission 

1,753 

65,443 

673 

99,560 

110,000 

5,195,000 

640 2,416 1,124 

1.124 

4,180 

99,560 

86,004 

Total net assets $ 235,312 808,440 289,271 66,745 1,399,768 

See accompanying notes to financial statements, 



 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY , LO UISIANA 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 2002 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the City), was incorporated in 1907 and operates under a City Charter 
dated July 1, 1977, which provides for a strong M ayor42ouncil form of government. The City provides the 
following services as authorized by its charter: public health and safety, streets, sanitation, water and 
sewerage, planning and zoning, recreation, and general administrative services. Education an d welfare are 
adm inistered by other govern m ental entities. 

Th e basic criterion for determ ining wheth er a governmental departm ent, agency, institution, com m ission, 
public authority, or other govern mental organ ization should be included in a primary governmental unit's 
reporting entity for basic financial statements is financial accountability. Financial accountability includes 

the appointment of a voting majority of the organ ization's governing body and the ability of the primary 
govern m ent to impose its w ill on th e organiza tion or if there is a financial benefit/burden relationship. In 
addition, an  organiza tion which is fiscally dependent on the primary govern ment should be included in its 
reporting entity. 

The finan cial statements present the City (the primary government) and its component units. The 
component units discussed below are included in the City 's reporting entity because of the significance of 
their operational or financial relationships with the City. 

Discretely Presented Com ponent Units 

The com ponent units colum ns in th e combined financial statements include the financial data of the 

City's component units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally 
separate from the City . 

M etropolitan Planning Com m ission 

The Metropo litan Planning Commission (Commission) is responsible for the orderly physical 
development of the City an d the surrounding plan ning area. The Commission makes 
recommendations to the City Council an d the Parish Police Jury. The Commission consists of nine 
members with four appointed by both the City an d the Bossier Parish Police Jury, an d one member 
is elected by joint action of the governing authorities. Although the Commission is legally separate, 
the City acts as its fiscal agent and has the ability to modify and approve its budget. The 
Commission serves the citizenry  of the City of Bossier City. 

City Court of Bossier City 

The City Court of Bossier City (City Court) was created by special legislative act. Its jurisdiction 
includes the incorporated area of the City. The City judge is elected and cannot be removed by City 
officials. The City Court is fiscally dependent on the City. The City has the ability to modify or 
approve its budget which comes from the General Fund. There are certain funds collected by the 
City Court, pursuant to state statute, which are under the control of the City Court. The City Court 
serves the citizenry of the City. Th e financial statements of the City Court included in the 
accompan ying finan cial statements are as of and for the fiscal year ended Decem ber 31, 2002. 

(Continued) 



CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 3 t, 2002 

Bossier City M arshal's O ffice 

The Bossier City Marshal (City Marshal) is an elected official. The City Marshal is fiscally 
dependent on the City. The City has the ability to modify or approve the budget which comes from 
the General Fund. There are certain funds collected as court costs, pursuant to state statute, which 
are under the control of the City M arshal. Th e City M arshal serves the citizenry of the City. The 
financial statements of th e City M arshal included in the accompanying financial statements are as of 
an d for the fiscal year ended Decembe r 31, 2002. 

Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority 

Th e Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority was created by a trust indenture, pursuant to state 
enabling legislation, which made the City the beneficiary. There are five trustees appointed by the 
City Council for terms of five years. In acco rdance with the terms of the trust indenture, the City has 
no power to transact business for the tru stees nor to control or direct the actions of the tru stees. The 
City is entitled solely to the benefits of the trust, and at the termination of the trust it shall receive 
the residual of the trust. The City cannot access the organization's funds at will, although there is 
some ability to acce ss them at the discretion of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority . Th e 
Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority serves the citizenry of the City. Th e financial statements 
of the Bossier Public Trust Finan cing Authority included in the accompanying finan cial statements 
ar e as of an d for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2002. 

The Commission does not issue separate finan cial statements and consists of only one fund. Their 
finan cial statements are included in this report and these financial statements can  be obtained from 
the Finance Department, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City, Louisian a 71171. Complete financial 
statements of th e other individual component units may be obtained at th e following addresses: 

City Court of Bossier City 
P.O. Box 5337 
Bossier City, Lo uisiana 71171 

Bossier City M arshal's Office 
P.O. Box 5337 
Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 

Bossier Public Trust Finan cing Authority 
710 Benton Road 
Bossier City, Louisian a 71171 
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CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIA N A 

Notes to Combined Financial Statem ents 

December 31, 2002 

O ther Related O rganizations 

Bossier H ousing A uthority 

The Bossier Housing Authority was created by state statute, and it is legally separate from the City. 

The M ayor appoints the five commissioners; however, the City cannot impose its will on the Bossier 
Housing Authority since it does not have the ability to modify or approve the budget or overrule or 
modify the decisions of the commissioners. The Bossier Housing Authority is fiscally independent 
and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the City. Therefore, it is not included in 
the City's financial statements. 

Industrial Park Fund 

Th e Industrial Park Fund was organized in 1976 as a joint venture be tween the City and the Bossier 
Parish Police Jury for the purpose of purchasing land and the developm ent of an industrial park. 

The City has a 50% interest in the assets of the Industrial Park Fund. Both governing bodies share 
equally in the approval process for budgeting and financing activities. Advan ces by the City to the 
Industrial Park Fund have been expensed in the fund making the advance, and the City's equity 
interest in the net assets of the fund has not been recorded because it is immaterial. 

Condensed unaudited finan cial information as of December 3 I, 2002 is as follows: 

Balance Sheet Data 

Total assets 

Total fund balance 

Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes  in Fund Balance 

Revenues 
Expenditures 

Excess of expenditures over revenues 

Fund balan ce, Jan uary I, 2002 

Fund balance, December 31, 2002 

$ 

$ 

Total 

165,482 

165,482 

$ 131,785 
(280,690) 

(148,905) 
314,387 

$ 165,482 

City 's share 

82,741 

82,741 

65,892 
(140,345) 

(74,453) 
157,194 

82,741 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

N otes to Combined Financial Statem ents 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

In 2002, the City spent approximately $100,000 for water and sewer improvements to enhance 
services for two new future business developments in the industrial park. Complete financial 

statements of the joint venture may be obtained at the following address: 

Bossier Parish Police Jury 
P.O . Box 68 
Bossier City, Louisiana 71006 

The accounting policies of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, conform to generally accepted 
accounti]lg principles as applicable to governmental units. The accounting policies of the discretely 
presented component units are consistent with those of the City. The following is a summary of the 
m ore significant policies: 

(a) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
During the current year, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements- and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. See note 13 for additional 
inform ation. 

The government-wide financial statements (GW FS) (i.e., the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities) report inform ation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For 
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which norm ally are supported by taxes and intergovern mental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant 
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary govern ment is reported 
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary govern ment is 
finan cially accountable. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City 's assets an d liabilities, with 
the difference betw een the tw o reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
as sets m ay serve as a useful indicator of whether the finan cial position of the City is 
improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
fu nction or segm ent are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those th at are clearly 
identifiable with a specific fu nction or segment. Depreciation expense is identified by 
function an d is included in the direct expense of each function. Interest on general long-term  
debt is considered an indirect expense an d is reported separately on the statement of activities. 

Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) 
grants and contributions th at are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a 
particular fu nction or segm ent. Taxes and other items not prope rly included among program  
revenues are reported instead as  general revenues. 
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Notes to Com bined Financial Slatements 

Decenth er 3 I, 2002 

Separate fund financial statements (FFS) are provided for governmental fimds, proprietary 
funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the GW FS. Major 
individual govermnental filnds are reported as separate columns ill the FFS. 

(b) Measurement Focus, Ba~'is of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The govern ment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurelnent focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and 
fiduciary fund financial staterr~nts. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the tim ing of related cash flows. Property 
taxes are reeogmized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be avaihth le if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 

judgments, are recorded ouly when payment is due. 

Ad valorem taxes are considered "measurable" at the tilne of levy whereas such items as be er 
taxes are considered "measurable" when in the hands of intermediary collecting agencies and 
are recognized as revenue at that time. Substantially all other non-intergovernmental revenues 
are susceptible to accrnal and are recogn ized when earned or the underlying transaction 
occurs. Sales taxes are accrued in the individual fimds to which they pertain. For 
intergovernmcnlal revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the num erous 
individual programs are used as guidance. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues 
as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. In reimbursement type programs, monies 

must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the 
City; therefore revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In other 
programs in which monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are 
usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements, the 
resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual 
criteria are met. 

The accounts of the City are organize d on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set 
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance/retained earnings, 
revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various lhnds are summarized by type in the 
financial statements. The following fund types are used by the City: 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

N otes to Com bined Financial Statements 

December 31, 2002 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are those through which most govern mental functions of the City are 
financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and 
the related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for 
through governmental funds. The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for the monies received 
from the riverboats prior to t999 an d the earnings on those monies. City ordinance 
required the riverboat monies be accumulated in this fund until a base amount of $30 
million was attained. The funds will be used for capital and other undetermined projects. 

Arena Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for th e revenues received and 

operating expenses incurred in the operations of the City 's Arena. 

Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fun d- This fund is used to account for expenditures 
associated with downtown development, major park improvements, and other major 
capital projects and is funded by a percentage of gross gaming receipts and tlle initial 
payments made by three riverboat casinos and related interest earnings. 

Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects Fund - This was fund was established in 2002 to 
account for the proc eed s received from the Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, Series 
2002 and the expenditures of th e bond monies. 

Public Health and SafeO, Permanent Fund - Th e fund was created to account for the 
proceeds from the sale of the Bossier M edical Center. Amounts received in excess of the 
required principal balance of $17,911,368 and earn ings on the principal may only be 
spent for th e purpose of public health an d safety. 

Additionally the City reports the following governmental fund types 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue fu nds are used to account for the proceeds of 

specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. 

Debt Service Fun ds- Th e debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, an d the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, an d related 
costs. The debt service fu nds reeeive a portion of all ad valorem and sales taxes paid to 
the City. 

Capital Project Funds - Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources 
to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those 
financed by proprietsry funds and trust funds). 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and activities 
which are similar to those often found in the private sector. All proprietary funds and the 
pension trust funds are accounted for on a capital maintenance measurement focus; that is, the 
measltrement focus is upon determination of the change in net assets. The City reports the 
following major proprietary fund: 

Department of Water and Sewerage Enterprise Fund - Operated as a self-sustaioing 
utility of the City and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of Bossier 
City, Louisian a, with water and sewerage treatment. 

Additionally the City reports the following proprietary fund types: 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are 
finan ced and operated in a man ner similar to private business enterp rises - where th e 

intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided 
that periodie determ ination of revenues earn ed, expenses incurred, and/or net income is 

appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, 
or other purposes. 

lnternal Service Funds - Intern al serv ice fu nds are used to account for th e financing of 
services provided by one department of the City to other departments on a cost- 
reim bursem ent bas is. The City maintains tw o internal service funds for workm eo's 

eompan sation and general insurance coverage. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used  to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an 
agent for individuals, private organ iza tions, other govern mental units, and/or other fu nds. 

Pension Trust Funds - The City maintains three retirement fu nds which are accounted 
for and reported as fiduciary funds since capital maintenance is critical. These funds are 
th e Firemen's Pension an d Relief Fund, the Policemen's Pension an d Relief Fund, and 
the Bossier M edieal Center Pension Fund. 

Agency Funds - Agency fu nds are custodial in nature and do not present re sults of 
operations or have a meas urement focus. Th e Consolidated Sales Tax Fund ace ounts for 
the collection of a two an d one-half percent city sales and use tax and the distribution of 
this tax to the various funds which acco unt for operations or projects for which the tax 
was levied. Th is fu nd also accounts for th e collection and distribution of sales taxes 
levied by the Bossier Parish School Board an d various municipalities with in the parish. 
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The Riverboat Gaming Agency Fund accounts for the receipt and distribution of funds 
received from the riverboats and paid to other local govern ment agencies under the terms 
of the agreements with the riverboats. 

The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its 
proprietary operations as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before 
November30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statem ents and Interpretations, 
Accounting Principles Board opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been elim inated from the GW FS. 

Exceptions to this genera l ru le are charges between the government's water and sewer 
function and various other fu nctions of the government. Elim ination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and progr am revenues reported for the various functions concern ed. 

Transactions that would be treated as revenues, expe nditures or expenses if they involved 
organizations external to the City, such as routine employer contributions from the General 
Fund to the pension trust funds, are accounted for as revenues and expenditures or expenses in 
the funds involved. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital 
grants and contributions. Intern ally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues 
rather than as program re venues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the City 's enterprise and internal funds are charges to 
customers for sales and serv ices. Ope rating expenses for enterprise an d intern al service funds 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, an d depreciation on capital 
assets. All revenues and expenses not m eeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues an d expenses. 

W hen both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to 
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

The accrual bas is of accounting is used by the proprietary funds and the pension trust funds. 
Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred. The 
reserve method is used to account for bad debt expenses on enterp rise fu nd receivables. 

Unbilled service receivables of the Department of W ater and Sewerage Fund, Sanitation Fund, 
an d Emergency M edical Services Fund are reflected in the accompanying financial statements 
at approximately $379,403, $90,533, and $49,787, respectively, at Dec ember 31, 2002. 
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Capital assets, which include property, plan t, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, 
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or 
business-type activities column in the GW FS. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost for assets where actual historical cost is not available and depre ciated 
over their estimated useful lives. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair 
value at the date of donation. The City maintains a threshold level for capitalization of fixed 
assets except land and construction in progress. All land and construction in progress is 
capitalized, regardless of th e amount. All other fixed assets are capitalized utilizing a 
threshold of $25,000 for lan d improvements, $50,000 for buildings and building 
improvements, $5,000 for furn iture, equipment and vehicles, and $250,000 for infrastructure. 
Th e costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capita lized. 

Capital assets are not reported in the FFS 

Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet 
service demands. Capital assets have not been assigned a salvage value because man agement 
feels that the salvage value is immaterial. Straight-line depreciation is calculated based on the 
following estim ated useful lives: 

Land improvements 
Buildings 
Building improvements 
W ater reservoir and treatment plant 
Tran smission an d distribution system 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 

20 - 30 years 
40 years 
40 year s 

10 - 60 years 
10 - 50 year s 
5 - 10 years 

5 years 

(d) Long-term Liabilities 
In the G W FS, and proprietary fund types in the FFS, long-term debt and oth er long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over file term  of the related debt. Bonds 
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 

In the FFS, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond 
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances ar e reported as other financing 
sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from th e actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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For all funds, investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. The 
investments at December 31, 2002 were primar ily U.S. governm ent an d U.S. government 

agency securities (see note 2 for the City's investm ent po licy). 

Prepaid items consist of items such as  prepaid insurance and other prepaid expenditures. The 
cost is recorded as an asset at the time such items are purchased in both government-wide and 
fund financial statements. The reserve for prepaid expenditures in governmental fu nd types is 

equal to the amount of prepaid expenditures to indicate a portion of the fund balance is not 
available for future expenditure. 

(g) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out). Inventories in the General Fund consist of 
expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time 
individual inventory items are purchas ed and charged as an expenditure when used in both 
government-wide and fund financial statements. Inventories in the enterprise funds consist of 
repair materials and spare parts. 

Th e Department of W ater and Sewerage of the City of Bossier City requires that its first time 
water and sewer customers or customers not in good standing place a deposit before serv ice is 
rendered. If customers maintain th e status of good standing for one year, the deposits are 
returned. These monies are not restricted by law and are generally used by the Department of 
W ater an d Sewerage in meeting current operating cash requirements. 

Th e Sales Tax Department requires deposits of certain establishments involved in spe cial 
events and before being allowed to sell alcohol. The deposits are used to offset delinquent tax 
bills or are retu rn ed upon the respective activity ceasing. 

Proceeds from ticket sales for Arena events sold in advance are reflected as  a deposit until th e 
event occurs and settlement with the event promoter is complete. 

Certain licenses are collected in advance; therefore, th e recognition of revenue is deferred 
until the following year . Rental fees for luxury  boxes an d advertising at the Arena are 
collec ted in advance . Th e revenue is recogn ized over the term of the agreements. 

City employee s are granted  vacation an d sick leave in varying amounts. Th e max imum 
allowable accum ulation of vacation an d sick leave is up to 40 days and 100 days, respectively. 
In th e event of term ination, an employee is reimbursed  for accumulated vacation days up to 
the max imum allowable accumulation. For finan cial reporting purposes, the City does not 
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accrue vacation earned but not paid in the governmental funds since the liability will be 
fu nded from future resources. Vacation and sick leave are recorded as an expenditure when 
paid in governmental funds. The estimated liability for unused vacation for govern mental 
funds is recorded in the GW FS. Accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds is recorded 
as an expense and liability of those funds as it is earned by the employees. 

Th e City of Bossier City, Louisiana, and the State of Louisiana collectively have six pension 
plans which cover substan tially all employees who meet certain length of service 
requirements. See note 8 for details of these plans. 

Prior to its sale in June 1999, Bossier M edical Center participated in the M edicare and 
M edicaid programs as a provider of medical services to program beneficiaries. Laws and 

regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to 
interpretation. Th e City believes Bossier M edical Center was in compliance with all 
applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations 
involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. W hile no such regulatory inquires have been 

made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to fu~re government review 
and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and 
exclusion from the M edicar e an d M edicaid program s. 

Revenues derived from the Medicare program  are subject to audit and adjustment by the fiscal 
intermediary and must be accepted by th e United States Department of Health and Human 
Serv ices before settlement amounts be come final. Revenues derived from the M edicaid 

program are subject to audit an d adjustment and must be accepted by the Department of 
Health and Hospitals of the State of Louisiana before settlement am ounts become final. Final 
settlements through December 31, 1998 for the M edicare an d M edicaid progr ams have been 

reviewed by program representatives and adjustments have been recorded to correct for the 
changes required. 

Certain proceeds of the City's enterp rise fund revenue bonds, as  well as certain resources set 
aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their 
use is limited by applicable bond co venan ts. 

(n) Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statements, govern mental funds report reserv ations of fund balance for 
am ounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for 
use for a specific purpose. Design ations of fund balance represent tentative management plan s 

that are subject to change. 
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A ll outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to/from other funds. There is no 
activity betw een funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end of 
the fiscal year. Any residual balances outstanding betw een the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities ar e reported in the GW FS as internal balances. 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property when the assessment is approved by 
the Louisiana Tax Comm ission. Taxes are norm ally levied in November of each year and are 
due on or before December 31. The City bills and collects i(s own property taxes. Historically 
94%  of th e taxes have been collected within 60 days after the due date. 

Th e City currently levies the maximum tax  allowed by state statutes and the Louisian a 
Constitution for general governmental services other than taxes for special purposes (such as 
the funds designated for the Fire and Police Departments) or the payment of long-term  debt. 
Th e City is perm itted to levy tax es up to 10% of the assessed property valuation for each 
specified purpose for the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt after approval by 
the voters of the City. 

Federal and state governmental agencies represent an  important source of supplementary 
funding to finance housing, employment and construction programs, and oth er activities 
beneficial to the community . Th ese funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the 
General Fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and enterprise funds. Th e gran ts 
norm ally specify the purpose for which the funds may be used an d are subject to audit by the 
gr anting agency or its representative. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers each fund's equity investment 
in the pooled cash account an d all highly liquid debt instruments (including restricted assets) 
with an original maturity of three months or less when purchas ed to be cash equivalents. 

(s) Self-lnsuranceClaims 
Th e City is self-insured for workmen's compensation coverage. Self-insured claims are 
reco rded in the City 's intern al service funds in accordance with GASB Statement No. 10. 

Incurred but not reported claims are recorded as liabilities in the Insurance Fund and Liability 
Insurance Fund. An estimate for these claims is provided by a third party adm inistrator based 
on historical experience. 
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(2) Cash and Investments 

City of Bossier City (Primary Government) 

All deposits of the City are held by area financial institutions. At December 31, 2002, the carrying amount 
of the City's deposits, including fiduciary funds, was $81,844,108 and the bank balance was $83,244,761. 
This difference is due to the outstan ding cheeks at December 31, 2002. 

The City maintains a pooled cash an d investments account for all funds of the City except the pension 
trust fu nds and th e Bossier M edical Center Fund. Each fund's equity in pooled cash and investments is 
presented as either "Cash an d Cash Equivalents" or "Investm ents" on the combined balance sheet. Interest 
income is allocated to each respective individual fu nd monthly based on each fund's average daily cas h 
balance. 

The bank balan ce was covered by federal depository insurance or was collateralized with securities held 

by the City's agent (one of its custodial banks) in the City's name. Statutes require that securities pledged 
for deposits of th e City be held by a bank other than the pledging bank. 

State statutes authorize the City to invest in United States bonds, treasury  notes, government agenciesr 
securities, certificates and time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana 
and national banks having their principal office in the State of Louisiana, or mutu al or trust fund 
institutions which have underlying investm ents consisting solely of and limited to securities of th e United 
States govern ment or its agencies. In addition, the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policemen's 
Pension and Relief Fund, and the Bossier M edical Center Pension Fund may invest in bonds of the State 
of Louisiana or of the City of Bossier City. During 2002, the City invested in certificates of deposit and 
U.S. government and U.S. govern ment agency securities. 

The City's investments are categorized below to give an  indication of the level of risk assumed by the City 
at December 31, 2002. Category 1 includes investm ents that are insured or registered or for which th e 
securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured an d 
unregistered investm ents with securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's 
name. Category  3 includes uninsured and unregistered investm ents with securities held by the 
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the City's nam e. 

U.S. government and U,S. 
government agency securities 

Total investm ents 

Catel~ory 
1 2 3 Fair value 

Total deposits 

Total cash, cash equivalentS, 
and investm ents, including 
restricted cash and investm ents 

,t3 

101,787t566 

101,787,566 

81.844.108 
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The pension trust funds own approximately 5.3%  of the City's deposits in financial institutions and 30.0%  
of the U.S. government and U.S. govern ment agency securities. 

Com ponent Units 

All deposits of th e component units are held by area financial institutions. At the respective year ends, all 

deposits are insured or collateralized with securities held in the component unit's name by its agent (the 
trust department of a bank other than the pledging ban k). The investments of the Bossier Public Trust 
Financing Authority at November 30, 2002 consist primarily of mortgage-backed securities and 
investment agreementS which are considered category 1 investments. The securities have a fair value of 
$5,920,529 at November 30, 2002. 

(3) Ad Valorem Property Taxes 

The City levies taxes on real an d business personal property located within its boundaries. Property taxes 
are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the 
State of Louisiana Tax Comm ission. Total assessed value was $309,006,730 and $296,288,890 in 2002 
and 2001, respectively. Property tax es are recorded as receivables and revenues in the year levied. The 
General Fund property tax receivable at December 31, 2002 and 2001 is shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible taxes as of each year-end of $65,000. The distribution of the City'~ levy (tax rate per $1,000 
assessed value) was as follows for 2002 and 2001: 

General Fund - unrestricted $ 
General Fund - restricted for Fire and Police 
Departments 

Levy 
2002 2001 

6.90 

19.87 

26.77 

6.90 

19.87 

26.77 

A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than  every 4 years. A revaluation was 
completed for the tax  roll as of January 1, 2000. 
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Receivables as of year-end for the City's individual major funds an d nonmajor, internal service and 
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are 
outlined below : 

Governmental activities: 

General Fund $ 
RivcTbo at Gam ing Special 
Revenue Fund 

Arena Special Revenue 
Fund 

Riverboat Gaming Capital 

Projects Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Capital 

Projects Fund 
Public Health and Safety 
Permanent Fund 

Nonmajor govcnrnental 
funds 

Total govcxnmenta[ 
activities $ 

Property Other 
Customers taxes taxes 

--  4,613,105 937,806 

Business-type activities: 

W ater and Sewerage Fund 1,490,218 
Nonmajor business-type 

Total business-type 
activities $ 3,101,128 

Other funds $ --  

301,953 

Gaming 
fees 

Accrued 
interest 

Allowance 
for 

uncollectible Net 
Other accounts receivable 

--  11,387 452,048 

--  324,989 

--  --  318,073 

195,780 161,815 --  

--  186,522 

(65,000) 5,949,346 

--  324,989 

--  318,073 

--  1357,595 

--  301,953 

--  186,522 

45 

220,986 

819 

5,135 (292,106) 1,434,233 

221,805 155,455 (1,014,478), 2,463,910 

146298 
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Govern mental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not 
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Govern mental funds also defer 
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end 
of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in 
the governmental funds were as follows: 

Unavailable Unearned 

Delinquent property taxes receivable 
(General Fund) $ 

Hotel Motel Taxes (Hotel Motel Tax es 
Special Revenue Fund) 

Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all 
eligibility requirements 

Total deferred/unearned revenue 
for governmental funds 

225,603 

750,000 

975,603 

512,429 

512,429 
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(5) Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and land improvements $ 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buildings and structures 
Equipment and vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Balance 

Decem ber 31, 
2001 Additions 

40,217,677 8,449,320 

5,542,080 

Balance 
Decem ber 31, 

Retirem ents 2002 

(7,847) 48~659,150 
6,634,913 

41,310,510 13,991,400 (7,847) 55,294,063 

82,471,364 
15,311,200 
50,533,715 

272,531 
1,744,335 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 148,316,279 2,016,866 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and structures 
Equipment an d vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total accum ulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

(10,452,167) 
(11,080,833) 
(3,706,837) 
(25,239,837) 

123.076.442 

Capital assets, net $ 164,386,952 

(2,021,574) 
(1,923,586) 
(1,263,342) 

10,799,764 (7,847) 

82,743,895 
17,055,535 

50.533.715 

(12,473,741) 
(13,004,419) 
(4,970,179) 

(30,448,339) 

119.884.806 

175,178,869 

Construction in progress consisted of $154,385 for a security fence for the Fire and Police departments at 
the municipal complex; $450,390 for a parking lot addition at the Civic Center, $113,433 for a radio tower 
at the m unicipal complex to improve communication for public safety; $55,714 for the renovation of the 
Bossier Arts Council building; $829,588 for construction of the new Shady Grove Fire Station #4; 
$833,000 for the Shreveport Barksdale Interchange Ramps project; $2,719,911 for the Traffic Street 
W idening project; $1,055,102 for the Riverwalk project; and $423,390 for the Benton Road Overpass 
project. 
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Business-type activities - W ater 
- and Sewerage: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land and land improvements 
Construction in progress 

Total capital asse ts not 
being depreciated 

Capital as sets being depreciated: 
W ater reservoir an d treatm ent 

plan t 
Transm ission an d distribution 

system 
Equipm ent 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accum ulated depreciation for: 
W ater reservoir and treatm ent 

plan t 
Transmission an d distribution 

system 
Equipment 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 

Capital as sets, net 

Balance 
Decem ber 31, 

2001 

Balance 
Decem ber 31, 

Additions Retirements 2002 

748,614 112,570 --  861,184 

18,098,031 438,364 (16,217,781) 2,318,614 

18,846,645 550,934 (16,217,781) 

37,378,556 16,176,021 

39,921,638 
5,221,696 

2,666,169 

806,965 

19.649.155 

(15,009,556) (960,073) 

(11,885~15) 

(3,276,650) 
(837,304) 
(352,193) 

(30,171,421) (2,149,570) 

52,350,469 17,499,585 

$ 71,197,114 

3.179.798 

53,554,577 

42,587,807 
6,028,661 

102.171.045 

(15,969,629) 

(12,722,519) 
(3,628,843) 

18,050,519 (16,217,781) 73,029,852 

Construction in progress consisted of $2,318,614 for the Odor Control Project at the Northeast and Red 
River Treatment Plants. 
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O ther business-type activities : 
Capital assets being depreciated: 
Equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Equipment 

Capital assets, net 

Balance 

Decem ber 31, 

2001 Additions 

(1,069,495) 
$ 173,024 

(74,147) 

(74,147) 

Balance 
Decem ber 31, 

Retirem ents 2002 

(1,143,642) 
98,877 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General Government $ 692,976 
Public safety 1,079,530 
Highways and streets 1,521,003 
Culture and recreation 1,888,289 
City Court and M arshal 26,704 

Total depreciation expense -governmental activities $ 5,208,502 

Business-type activities: 
W ater and sewer $ 
Emergency medical services 

Total depreciation expense- business-type activities 
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2,149,570 
74,147 

2,223,717 
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(6) Long-Term Debt 

City of Bossier City (Primary Governmen0 

The following is a summary of the long-term obligation activity for the year ended December 31, 2002 

Governmental activities: 

Revenue bonds payable 

Premium on bonds 

Claims and judgments payable 
Net pension obligation 

Compensated absences 

Governmental activity long-term liabilities 

Business-type activities - W ater 
and Sewerage: 

Revenue bonds payable 

Deferred loss on refunding 

Compensated absences 

W ater and Se werage long-term liabilities 

Other business-type activities: 

Compensated ab sences 

Total business-type activities 

Beginning Ending Due within 
balance Additions Reductions balance one year 

$ 62,385,000 29,260,000 
--  1,032,952 

828,574 1,947,361 

184,435 

714,723 166,774 

$ 64,112,732 32,407,087 

18,376,319 12,937,950 

(551,030) 55i,030 
t84,745 8,155 

3,75~000 

1,294,783 

96,824 

87,895,000 

1,032,952 

1,481,152 

87,611 

881.497 

5,141,607 91,378,212 

3,965,000 

502,805 

1,395,000 29,919,269 1,040,000 

192,900 

$ 18,010,034 13,497,135 1,395,000 30,112,169 1,134,575 

$ t1~234 159,979 88,530 

$ 18,120,268 13,546,880 1,395,000 30,272,148 1,223,105 

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governm ental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for 

them are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. The claims and judgments 
liability will be liquidated through the City 's Insurance Fund and Liability Insurance Fund. These funds 
will finance th e payment of these claims by charging other fu nds bas ed on the origination of the claims. 
The General Fund norm ally bears approximately 76% of these costs. For the governmental activities, the 
balan ce of compensated absences is generally liquidated by the General Fund. Net pension obligation will 
also be liquidated by the General Fund. 

The following is a summary of bond transactions (all revenue bo nds) for the year ended December 31, 
2002: 

Bonds payable at January 1, 2002 
New issue 
Debt retired - serial bonds 
Amortization of gain on refu nding 

Bonds payable at December 31, 2002 

$ 80,210,289 
47,395,902 
(9,310,000) 

551.030 

In addition to $9,310,000 of bonds retired, the City paid $3,949,893 in interest. 
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Bonds payable at December 31, 2002 are comprised of the following issues: 

Revenue bonds - applicable to general city operations 

$6,500,000 1979 Public Improvement Sales Tax Serial Bonds due in 
annual installments of $500,000 through December 1, 2003; interest 
at 6.25%  500,000 

$8,190,000 1991 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in annual installments 
of $155,000 to $540,000 through 2010; maturing December 1 of 
each year; interest at 6.5% to 6.85% ; callable on or after 
December 1, 2001 1,745,000 

$6,325,000 1993 Public Improvement Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, due 
in annual installments of $400,000 to $640,000 through 2010; 
maturing December 1 of each year;, interest at 4.6% to 5.3% ; 
callable on or after July 1, 1996 4,175,000 

$8,765,000 1997 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in annual installments 
of $425,000 to $830,000; maturing November 1 of each year; 
interest at 4.45%  to 5.2% 7,400,000 
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Revenue bonds - applicable to water and sewer operations: 

$7,595,000 1996 Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds due in annual 
installments of $605,000 to $880,000; maturing October 1 of each 
year; interest at 4.3%  to 5.1%  

$6,500,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 due in annual 
installments of $215,000 to $415,000 through 2019; maturing 
October 1 of each year; interest at 3.45% 

$3,500,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. A repayment 
schedule for these bonds has not yet been established. 

$16,410,000 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 due in 
annual installments of $75,000 to $1,510,000 through 2022; 
maturing October 1 of each year, interest at 3.5%  to 5.0% 

Total water and sewer bonds 

Total revenue bonds 

5,980,000 

5,235,000 

2,369,269 

16,335,000 

29,919,269 

$ 118,847,221 

The annual requirements, $1,032,952 premium on bonds and $2,369,269 of bonds for which a repayment 
schedule has  not yet been established, to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 2002 are as 
follows: 

Year ending December 31 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 - 2012 
2013 - 2017 
2018 - 2022 

Governm ental activities Business-type activities 

$ 3,965,000 4,221,699 
3,765,000 4,021,089 
3,940,000 3,853,377 
4,145,000 3,673,477 
4,345,000 3,485,726 
24,495,000 14,294,159 
19,900,000 8,791,693 
23r340r000 3,614t750 

1,040,000 
1,090,000 
1,130,000 
1,185,000 
1,235,000 
7,050,000 
7,155,000 
7.665.000 

1,229,735 
1,187,730 
1,143,095 
1,094,695 
1,044,645 

4,354,639 
2,857,405 
1.109.063 

Total 

10,456,434 
10,063,819 
10,066,472 
10,098,172 

1~110,371 
50,193,798 
38,704,098 
35,7281813 

$ 87,895,000 45r955,970 27,550~000 14,021,007 175,421,977 

There are a number of limitations an d restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in 
compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. 

In 2002, the 1990 Utilities Revenue Bonds that were defeased were called an d paid in full. The advan ce 
refunding of these bonds had resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of the old debt. The remaining difference of $447,253, at the time the defeas ed bonds were called, 
has been charged to operations in 2002. 

In 2001, the City authorized the issuan ce of $3,500,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 for the 
purpose of acquiring an d constructing improvements for the treatment of odor control. In 2001, the City 
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received an installment of the purchase price of the bonds in the amount of $1,676,318. During 2002, the 
City received additional purchase price installments of $692,950. 

In 2002, the City issued $29,260,000 of Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, Series, 2002. The bonds 
were issued at a premium of $1,032,952. Total funds received from the issuance of the bonds was 
$30,292,952. As the bonds were issued in December 2002, no amortization of the premium has been 
recorded. In future years, the prem ium will be  amortized over the life of the bonds. 

In 2002, the City issued $12,245,000 of Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2002. The proceeds of the bonds 
are to be used to fund additions and improvements to the utility system .. 

In 2002, th e City issued $4,165,000 of Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002. The bonds were 
issued to advance refund $4,350,000 of the 1992 Utility Revenue Bonds. The net proceeds of $4,110,385 
(after payment of $54,615 in issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those 
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an  escrow agent to provide for all fu ture debt service 
payments on the 1992 bonds. As a result, the 1992 bonds are considered defensed and the liability for 
those bonds has been removed from th ese finan cial statements. The difference between the cash flows 
required to service the old debt and the cas h flows required to service the new debt and complete the 

refunding totaled $615,780. An economic gain (difference between the present value of the old and new 
debt service payments) of $270,018 resulted from the refunding. A gain of $185,000 (the difference 
between the carrying amount of the defeased debt an d the reaequisition price) was recognized in the water 
and sewer fu nd since the 1992 bonds were called and paid in fu ll in October 2002. 

Chan ges in the Department of W ater and Sewerage as sets restricted  for debt serv ice and unrestricted an d 
invested in capital assets during the year ended Decembe r 31, 2002 were as follows: 

Department of W ater and Sewerage Fund 
Restricted: 
Balan ce at beginning of year $ 
Transfer from (to) unreserved retained earnings 
Balance at end of year 

Invested in capital assets and Unrestricted: 
Balance at beginning of year 
Net income 
Amounts charged  to contribution accounts for depreciation 
Transferred from (to) reserves 
Balance at end of year 

Total net as sets 
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969,376 
696,796 

1,666,172 

64,778,628 
741,796 

64,823,628 

$ 66,489,800 
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Details of restricted assets at December 31, 2002 are as follows: 

Department of W ater and Sewerage: 
W ater Division: 
Utility Revenue Bond Funds - 1996, 1997, 2001, an d 2002 

Utility Revenue Serial Bonds Debt Service Fund: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 
Accrued interest receivable 

W ater Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund: 
Investm ents 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total restricted assets applicable to the 
W ater Division 

Sewerage D ivision - Sewerage Capital Additions and 
Contingencies Fund: 

Investm ents 
Accrued interest receivable 

Total restricted assets applicable to the 
Sewerage Division 

770,746 
2,429,110 

26.441 

8,982,850 
93.175 

9,076,025 

6,763,532 
67,197 

6,830,729 

Total Departm ent of W ater and Sewerage 
restricted assets $ 19,133,051 

State law allows a maximum of 10%  of assessed valuation of bonded debt for an y one purpose or 35% of 
the total assessed  value for all purposes. The City as sessed property value at December 31, 2002 is 
$309,006,730. The max imum debt allowable for any one purpose and total debt allowable by state law as 
of December 31, 2002 is $30,900,673 and $108,152,356, respectively. The City currently has no general 
bonded debt outstanding. Therefore, at December 31, 2002, the City has a debt margin of $108,152,356 
available for issuance pursuant to the 35% lim itation. 
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The bonds payable of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority at November 30, 2002 consist of 
$10,600,000 Single Fam ily M ortgage Revenue Bonds, 1995 Series dated August 1, 1995, with interest at 
rates ranging from 4.2%  to 6.5% and maturing through August t, 2028. The 1992 Series bonds were 
refunded by the issuance of $10,080,000 of the 1995B Series bonds having an average interest rate of 
approximately 5.97% . At November 30, 2002, th e Authority has investm ents and accrued interest 
receivable of $5,603,949 and $31,690, respectively, restricted for repayment of the bonds. 

Scheduled bond principal maturities are as follows: 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
Thereafter 

$ 110,000 
110,000 
110,000 
110,000 
110,000 

4.755.000 

Under provisions of the indenture, the Authority has the option to redeem remaining outstanding bonds in 
whole at any time on or after A ugust 1, 2005, from available funds at an initial redem ption price of 102%  
of par an d subsequently at prices declining to par. The bonds are collateralized by the income derived 
from the mortgage loans and th e funds and accounts held under or pledged to the program pursuant to the 
indenture. 

(7) Sales Tax 

The Consolidated Sales Tax Agency Fund accounts for the collection of a two and one-half cent City sales 
and use tax an d the distribution of th is tax  to other funds of the City. This fund also accounts for the 
collection and distribution of sales taxes levied by the Bossier Parish School Board and var ious 
municipalities within the parish. For financial reporting purposes, sales taxes are recorded as revenue in 

the individual funds which account for operations or projects for which the taxes were levied and as 
approved for expenditu re by ordinance of the Council. 

The original one-cent sales tax is used initially to pay operating expenses incurred in th e administration 
and collection of sales taxes. Scheduled payments are made on a monthly bas is into the Sales Tax Bond 
an d Interest Sinking Funds for debt service requirements. After these payments, the amount, if any, up to 

one-half of the total monthly sales tax revenues (net of collection expense) are payable to the General 
Fund for Fire and Police Department operations and maintenance. The remaining amount, if an y, is 
payable to the Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund. 
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A half-cent sales tax was approved by the voters in 1982. This revenue, net of expenses incurred in 
collecting the tax, is to be paid to the Firemen's and Policemen's Pension and Relief Funds to liquidate the 
unfunded  liabilities of the plan s over 30 years. Th e remaining am ount, if an y, is payable to th e General 
Fund for salaries of police, fire, and other City employees. 

In 1987, a half-cent sales tax was approved by the voters. The additional revenue, net of expenses incurred 
in collecting the tax, is to be used for retirement of principal and payment of interest on sales tax bonds 
issued for the design and construction of a parkway adjacent to the Red River. The remaining amount, if 
any, is payable to the Parkway Capital Projects Fund. 

In 1991, an  additional half-cent sales tax was approved by the voters for the purposes of constru cting and 

operating two new fire stations and a training facility, operating and maintaining the City jail and 
m unicipal buildings, maintaining and upgrading streets and drainage, an d for salaries for personnel other 
than firemen and policemen. 

The cost associated with collecting and distributing the sales tax is funded by the City and the Bossier 
Parish School Board. The two entities fund the sales tax departmental expenditures on a pro rata basis. 
The various municipalities are charged a 1% comm ission on sales tax collected and distributed. The 
am ounts recorded as sales tax revenue in the various fu nds are net of operating expe nses of the sales tax 
department and includes other miscellaneous revenue related to the operation of th e department and the 
collection of the tax. 

(8) Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The City administers three defined benefit pension plans: the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund 
(Firemen's Fund), the Policeman 's Pension and Relief Fund (Polieemen's Fund) and the Bossier Medical 
Center Employees' Pension Fund (BMC Fund). 

A . Sum m ary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting - Th e three City administered pension plans' financial statements are prepared 
using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the 
pe riod in which employees provide services to the entity. Benefits an d refunds are recogn ized when 
due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan . 

M ethod Used to Value Investm ents - Investm ents are reported at fair value. Short-term investm ents 
are reported  at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded  on a national or international 
exchan ge are valued at th e last reported sales price at current exchan ge rates. Investm ents that do not 
have an  established market are reported at estimated  fair value. 

B. Concentration of Investm ents 

Th e Firemen's Fund and Poliee men's Fund had no investments in any one organization representing 
5% or more of th e fund balan ce reserved for employees' pension be nefits except for obligations of 
the federal government and its agencies. Th e BM C Fund had all of its investm ents in a ban k money 
market fund. There are no investments in loan s to or leases with parties related to the pension plans. 
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C. Plan Descriptions and Contribution Information 

M embership of each plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2002: 

Firem en's 
Fund 

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 
Current employees: 
Vested 
N onvested 

Tota l 

94 

7 

101 

Policem en's 
Fund 

55 

55 

Administrative costs of the Firemen's Fund, Policemen's Fund and BM C Fund are financed through 
the plan revenues. These plans do not have any legally required reserves. 

In connection with the sale of the hospital assets, the Bossier M edical Center's Board of Directors 
authorized term ination of the BM C Fund effective June 30, 1999. 

Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (Firemen's Fund) 

Plan Description - The Firemen's Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers 
substantially all members of th e City's Fire Department employed by the City before Jan uary 1, 1980. All 

firemen employed by the City on or after January 1, 1980 must join the Firefighter's Retirement System of 
Louisiana Plan. 

Pension Benefits - Employees with 20 years of service are eligible to receive monthly retirement benefits. 

These benefits are equal to two-thirds (2/3) of average final compensation, as defined. The beneficiary 
receives an additional amount equal to one (1) percent of such salary for each year of service after the 
member has reached the age of 50 years and has serv ed 20 years, provided that the maximum benefit shall 
not exceed seventy-five (75) percent of the salary. Benefits can only be paid out monthly and employee 
and employer contributions are forfeited upon term ination of an employee without the required length of 

serv ice. 

Death and Disability Benefits - If an active employee or an employee eligible for or receiving benefits 
shall die from any cause, a monthly benefit shall be paid to the membe r's surv iving spouse and children. 

The spouse, while remaining unmarried, shall receive fifty (50) percent of the eligible benefits to which 
the deceased member would be entitled. Each surviving minor child under the age of eighteen (18) years 
shall receive tw enty-four (24) percent of said benefits until the age of eighteen (18) or until married, 
whichever is sooner. If there is no widow, but there are children, each child receives thirty (30) percent 
until age eighteen (18) years or until married, whichever is sooner. These amounts paid to the family of 
the deceased will not exceed tw o-thirds (2/3) of the member's salary. 
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If an active employee becomes disabled by reason of serving the departm ent, he shall receive monthly a 

sum which, with the benefits from the Workmen's Compensation Act, shall be equal to seventy-five (75) 
percent of the month ly salary of the active member holding the position corresponding to that held by the 
beneficiary at the time he became disabled. The benefits shall continue as long as the disability  shall 
continue or until he becomes eligible for retirement on a service basis, whichever is sooner. If an active 
member with at least ten years of serv ice be comes disabled by reason of causes not arising or developing 
directly from employment, with certain exceptions, he shall receive monthly a sum equal to one-third (1/3) 
of the month ly salary of the active member holding the position corresponding to that held by the 

beneficiary at the time he became disabled, plus an additional two (2) percent of such salary for each year 
of active service rendered over five years. The maximum benefit shall not exceed two-thirds (2/3) of the 
month ly salary of the active member holding the position corresponding to that held by the beneficiary  at 
th e time he bec am e disabled. 

Deferred Retirem ent Option Plan - Th e Firemen's Fund provides for a Deferred Retirement Option 

Plan (DROP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least tw enty years of creditable service and who 
is eligible for a service retirement allowance may elect to defer receipt of these benefits for a period of 
th ree years. Th e month ly retirement benefits that would have been payable had th e member elected to 
cease employment an d receive a serv ice  retirement allowance will be paid into th e DROP account. Upon 
termination of employm ent at the end of th e specified period of participation, the monthly benefits th at 
were be ing paid into the DROP account daring the period of participation begin being paid to the retiree. 
The participan t may elect to receive paym ent in the form of one lump sum or an annuity based upon the 
account balan ce. 

Funding Sources - The Plan  is funded from the following sources, as established and may be amended by 
City ordinan ce: 

~ Proceeds from the City's portion of the State of Louisian a 2% Fire Insur an ce Tax Account. 

~ The sale of condemned property owned an d used by the Fire Department. 

~ Five percent of th e salaries of all employees of the Fire Department who are eligible for 
participation in the Firemen's Plan. 

~ A matching five percent of employees' salaries paid by the General Fund. 

~ Reimbursement by the General Fund for the operating deficit, if any. 

~ Income from investm ents owned by th e Firemen's Plan. 

~ Amounts from th e sales tax levy sufficient to liquidate the unfunded liability over a period not 
to exceed 30 years. 
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - A pension liability at transition was determ ined in 

accordan ce with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for pensions by State and Local Governmental 
Employers and equaled zero before and after transition. The City's annual pension cost and net pension 
obligation to the Firemen's Fund for the current year were as follows: 

Annual required contribution 

Interest and adjustments 
Annual pension cost 

Contributions m ade 

Decrease in net pension obligation 

N et pension obligation beginning of year 

Net pension obligation end of year 

4,071,182 
15,711 

4,086,893 

4,183,717 

(96,824) 
184,435 

$ 87,611 

The annual required contribution for the current year was determ ined as part of the December 31, 2002 
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assum ptions 

included: (a) 6.5% investment rate of return, compounded annually, including inflation of 3.25%, (b) 
projected salary increases of 4.5%, including inflation of 3.25%, (e) cost of living adjustments of 3.25%, 
and (d) amortization method of level percentage of payroll over I 0 year closed period. The actuarial value 
of assets is based upon fair value. 

Fiscal year ended: 
12/31/00 
12/31/01 
12/31/02 

Three-Year Trend Inform ation 

Annual 

3,939,003 
4,007,176 
4,086,893 

Percentage of 
annual 

pension cost 
contributed 

99~5 
101%  
102%  

Net pension 
asset 

(obligation) 

(230,610) 
(184,435) 
(87,611 ) 

Th e Firemen's Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes required supplementary 
information. That report ma)' be obtained by writing to M r. Charles E. Glover, Director of Finance, City of 
Bossier City, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City, Louisiana 71171-5337. 
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Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund (Policemen's Fond) 

Plan Description - The Polieemen's Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers a 
limited number of members of the City's Police Departm ent not covered under the M unicipal Police 
Employee Retirement System of Louisiana. All policemen employed on or after September 9, 1977 must 

join the Municipal Police Employee Retirement System of Louisiana Plan. 

Pension Benefits - Employees with 20 years of service or employees with 18 consecutive years of service 
and that have reached 65 year s of age are eligible for monthly retirement benefits. These benefits shall be 

two-thirds (2/3) of average final compensation, as defined, but not less than $100 per month. Benefits can 
only be paid monthly an d employee contributions are forfeited upon term ination of an  employee without 
the required length of service. 

The Policemen's Plan provides for a joint and survivor benefit option. This option gives the recipient the 
choice of reducing the amount of retirement drawn and increases amounts paid to survivors upon death. 
This option is actuarially equivalent to the original serv ice retirement benefit. Benefits paid, regardless of 

option, remains at two-thirds (2/3) of monthly salary, but not less than $100 per month. 

Deferred Retirem ent Option Plan - The Policemen's Plan provides for a Deferred Retirement Option 

Plan (DROP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least tw enty years of creditable service and who 
is eligible for a service retirement allowan ce may elect to defer receipt of these benefits for a period of 
three years. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable had th e mem ber elected to 
cease em ployment and receive a serv ice retirement allowance will be paid into the DROP account. Upon 
term ination of employment at the end of the specified period of participation, the monthly benefits that 
were being paid into the DROP account during the period of participation will begin being paid to the 
retiree. Th e participant may elect to receive payment in the form of no more than two payments per year in 
increments of at least $1,000 or an  annuity based upon the account balance. 

Death and Disability Be nefits - All participants are either retired or under the DROP program. 
Th erefore, ifa member dies while receiving a pension and leaves a child or children under eighteen year s 
of age, a widow, or a dependent mother; these surv ivors should be paid as follows: dependent mother, one 
hundred dollars per month; widow, surv ivor benefits based upon the election of the participant; each child 
under eighteen years of age or who is attending college, one hundred fifty dollars per month, regardless of 
the number of children. 
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Funding Sources - The Policemen's Fund is funded from the following sources, as established by City 
ordinance: 

~ Twenty percent of all amounts collected for City Court fines. 

~ Ten percent of all funds collected by the City for taxes, licenses, or perm its for the sale of 
alcoholic beverages. 

~ Six percent of the salaries of all employees of th e Police Department who are eligible for 
participation in the Policemen's Plan. 

~ Income from investments owned by the Police men's Plan. 

~ Reim bursement by the General Fund for the operating deficit of th e prior year, if any. 

~ Amounts from the 1982 sales tax levy sufficient to liquidate the unfunded liability over a 
period not to exceed 30 years. 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - A pension liability at transition was determ ined in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental 
Employers and equaled zero before an d after transition. The City's an nual pension cost and net pension 
asset to th e Policemen's Fund for th e current year were as follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest an d adjustments 

Annual pension cost 

Contributions made 

Increase in net pension asset 

Net pension asset beginning of year 

Net pe nsion asset end of year  

1,807,506 
(52,722) 

1,754,784 

1,961,412 

206,628 

648,357 

$ 854.985 

Th e annual required contribution for the current year was determ ined as  part of the December 31, 2002 
actuarial valuation using th e entry age normal actuar ial eost meth od . Significant actuarial assumptions 

inelod ed: (a) 6.5% investment rate of return, compounded annually, including inflation of 3.25% (b) cost 
of living adjustm ents of 3.25%, an d (e) amortization method of level percentage of payroll over 10 year 
closed period. The actu arial value of assets is based upon fair value. 

Fiscal year ended 
1~ 31~ 0 
1~ 31~ 1 
12/31102 

Three-Year Trend Inform ation 
Percentage of 

annual 
Annual 

pension cost 

$ 1,748,034 
1,750,461 
1,754,784 

pension cost 
contributed 

107%  
112%  
112%  

Net pension 
asset 

431,196 
648,357 
854,985 
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The Policemen's Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes required supplementary 
information. That report may be obtained by writing to M r. Charles E. Glover, Director of Finance, City of 
Bossier City, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City, Louisiana 71171-5337. 

Bossier M edical Center Employees' Pension Fund (BM C Fund) 

Term ination - In connection with the sale of the hospital assets, the Bossier M edical Center's Board of 
Directors authorized term ination of the Bossier M edical Center plan effective June 30, 1999 and all 
benefit accruals ceased on June 30, 1999. Th e plan has suffi cient assets to fund the termination liability, 
an d any excess as sets will be distributed among active participants. A determ ination letter regarding 
termination dated March 25, 2000 was received from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Under the 
termination plan , $6,525,286 of plan assets was distributed to 401 plan participants prior to 2002. No 
distributions were made in 2002. At December 31, 2002, there are still 2 participants to be paid out. 
Because th e plan  was term inated th ere were no required contributions for 2002. The only activity for 2002 
was $3,051 of administrative expenses. 

M ultiple-Em ployer Cost-Sharing Benefit Plans - Public Em ployee Retirem ent System s 

M unicipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (ERS) 

Plan Description - The City contributes to the M unicipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Board of Trustees of the 
M unicipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana. ERS covers substantially all employees of the 
City not covered by the fire, police and Bossier M edical Center pension plans. Benefits are established 
and may be amended by State statutes. The ERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
finan cial statements and required  supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to 
the Board of Trustees, M unicipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, 7937 Offi ce Park 
Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisian a 70809 or by calling 504-925-4810. 
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Funding Policy - Plan mem be rs are required to contribute 5%  of their annual compensation and the City 
is required to contribute 4.5% of annual compensation. The contribution requirementS of plan members 
and the City are established an d may be amended by State statute. The City's contributions to ERS for the 
years ended Decembe r 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 were $460,403, $369,845, and $349,460, respectively, 
equat to the required contributions for each year. The plan 's net pension obligation was zero at 
Decem ber 31, 2002. 

The City 's pension liability at transition was determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27 and 
equaled zero before an d after tran sition. 

M unicipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (WIPERS) 

Plan Description - The City contributes to the M unicipal Police Em ployees Retirement System Pension 
Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan adm inistered by the M unicipal Police 
Employees' Retirement System . M PERS covers any full-time police officer, empowered to make arrests, 
employed by a municipality of the State and engaged in law enforcement, earning at least $375 per month 
excluding state supplemental pay, or an elected Chief of Police whose salary is at least $I00 per month, 
an d an y employee of th is system may participate in the M PERS. Benefits are established and may be 
amended by State statutes. The M PERS issues a publicly available finan cial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Board 
of Trustees of the M unicipal Police Employees' Retirement System, 8401 United Plaza Blvd. Room 305, 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70806 or by calling 1-800--443-4248. 

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual compensation and the 
City is required to contribute 9%  of annual compensation, excluding overtime but including State 
supplem ental pay. The contribution requirements of plan  members and the City are established an d may be 
amended by State statute. The City's contributions to M PERS for the years ended December 31, 2002, 
2001, and 2000 were $508,192, $492,128, $475,574, respectively, equal to the required contributions for 
each year. The plan 's net pension obligation was zero at December 31, 2002. 

The City 's pension liability at transition was determined in accordan ce with GASB Statement No. 27 and 
equaled zero before and after transition. 

Statewide Firefighters' Retirement System (SFRS) 

Plan Description - The City contributes to the Statewide Firefighters' Retirement System Pension Plan, a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pe nsion plan  adm inistered by the Firefighters" Retirement 
System. SFRS covers firefighters employed by any municipality, parish, or fire protection district of the 
State of Louisian a under the provisions of Louisian a Revised Statutes 11:2251 through 2269 effective 
January 1, 1980. Benefits are established an d may be amended by State statutes. The SFRS issues a 
publicly available finan cial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
inform ation. That report may be obtained by writing to th e Board of Tru stees, Firefighters' Retirement 
System, 2051 Silverside Drive, Suite 210, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70808-4t36 or by calling 
504-925-4 060. 
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Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 8% of their annual compensation and the City 
is re quired to contribute 9% of annual compensation, excluding overtime but including State supplemental 
pay. The contribution req uirements of plan members an d the City are established and may be am ended by 
the SFRS Board of Trustees. Th e City's contributions to SFRS for the years ended December 31, 2002, 
2001, and 2000 were $579,838, $544,813, and $482,326, respe ctively, equal to the required contributions 
for each year . Th e plan's net pension obligation was zero at December 31, 2002. 

The City's pension liability at tran sition was determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 27 an d 
equaled zero be fore an d after transition. 

(9) Lease Commitments 

Th e City has commitments under several operating lease agreements for equipment, land, and a water 
supply re servoir. W ith the exception of the water supply reservoir, these lease agreements are can celable 
by the City at any time. City management does feel, however, that such leases will generally be renewed 
or replaced each year. The City's lease agr eement for the water supply reserv oir calls for fixed annual 
payments of $1,000 for the next 21 years. 

Total rental expense for 2002 for all City operating leases was $467,038 

(10) Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures 

(A) Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Interfund balan ces at December 31, 2002 were as follows: 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

Nonma]or 
Water and Special Nonmajor 

General Sewer Revenue Enterprise Fiduciary 
DUE FROM  OTHER FUNDS Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds Total 

General Fund $ 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 

15,777 152,585 219,236 31,324 418,922 
I  __  I  76,796 76,796 
I  __  --  216,042 216,042 

Total $ 234,838 15,777 152,585 219,236 324,162 946~598 

All balan ces resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expe nditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, 
and (3) paym ents betw een funds are made. 
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(B) Transfers 

Transfers for the year ended December 3 l, 2002 were as follows: 

TRANSFERS IN 

TRANSFERS OUT 

Riverboa~ Gaming Special 
Revenue Fund 

Nonmajor 
Special 

General W ater and Revenue 

Fund Sewer Fund Funds 

$ 1,928,937 

Public Health and Safety 
Permanent Fund I, 100,000 

Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects 
Fund 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Nonnmjor Debt Service Funds 
Nonmajor Ca pital Projects Funds 

Nonmajor 
Debt 
Service 
Fu nd 

--  --  1,409,179 

--  300,000 635,350 

Nonmajor 
Capital 

Projects 
Fund 

--  1,928,937 

I,I00,000 

1,409,179 

4,043,167 

35,900 

$ 6,136~754 499,164 300,000 2,132,616 
: 

35,900 9,104,434 

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them 
to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt 
service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt serv ice fund as debt service payments 

become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various 
programs accounted for in other funds in accordance w ith budgetary authorizations. 

(C) New Funds 

In 2002, the Sales Tax Bond Capital Projects fund was created to account for the proceeds and 
expenditure of the 2002 Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2002. The proceeds are to be 

used for capital projects as outlined in the City's capital budget. 
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The City Charter requires that actual expenditures may not exceed budget at the legal level of 
control. For the year ended December 31, 2002, expenditures exceeded budget as follows: 

General Fund: 

Fund 

General governm ent: 
Adm inistration 
Personnel 
Public works 
Animal control 
Information services 

Special revenue funds: 
Fire Im provements and Operations 
Fund 

423,296 
262,224 
209,461 
297,986 
562,815 

Actual on a 
budgetary 

basis 

460,734 
283,819 
221,708 
314,805 
579,331 

Negative 
variance 

(37,438) 
(21,595) 
(12,247) 
(16,819) 
(16,516) 

213,500 229,812 (16,312) 

State law and th e City Charter require that the total proposed expenditures shall not exceed the total 
of estimated funds available for th e year. This law was violated when the Arena Fund was budgeted 
to have a deficit fu nd balance. 

(11) Federal and State Financial Assistance 

Federal an d State governmental units represent an important source of supplementary fu nding to finance 
housing, employment, and eonstmction programs, and other activities be neficial to the community . Th ese 
funds, primarily in the form of gr ants, are recorded in the General and Special Revenue Funds. A gr ant 
re ceivable is recorded when the City has a right to reimbursement under the related grant. Th e gr an ts 
normally specify the purpose for which the fu nds may be used and are audited annually under the single 
audit as mandated by the Single Audit Act of 1996 and U.S. Office of M anagement and Budget Circular 

A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations. 

Supplementary salary paym ents are made by the state to certain gr oups of employees. Th e City is not 
regally re sponsible for these salaries. Th ere fore, the basis for recognizing the revenue an d expenditure 
paym ents is the actu al contribution from th e state. For 2002, the state paid supplemental salaries to the 
following groups of employees: Fire Department employees, $633,640; Police Department employees, 
$539,935; and City M arshal employees (a component unit), $24,665. 
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(12) Commitments and Contingencies 

Construction Projects 

There are certain construction projects in progress at December 31, 2002. The City has entered into an 
agreement with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality whereby the department agrees to 
provide the City with a low interest loan to provide for engineering an d construction of odor control 
improvements at the Red River W astewater Treatment Plan t and the Northeast W astewater Treatment 
Plan t estimated to cost approximately $3.5 million. In 2002, the City issued $12,245,000 in utility  revenue 
bonds for the purpose of providing additions an d improvements to the utility system. The City also entered 
into a contract with the State of Louisiana Departm ent of Transportation an d Development to provide all 
services necessary to design, acquire right of way, re locate utilities and construct the Arthur Ray Teague 
Parkway Interchan ge at State Route LA 3032 in Bossier Parish. The City paid $833,000 in 2001 which 
represents a preliminary estimate of costs to purchase remaining right of way and relocate utilities. The 
total estimate to construct the interchange is $3.3 million, which will be paid by the City. Th e City is 
planning to construct a multi-million dollar public recreation riverwalk along a portion of the Red  River. 
In conjunction with this project, the City is also planning to construct new infrastructure consisting of 
streets, drainage, utilities, and parking structures. Th e City has purchased land for this project. 
Approximately $5.6 million was expended as of December 31, 2001 an d approximately $4.1 million was 
expended in 2002. In 2002 the City issued $29,260,000 in public improvement sales tax bonds for th e 
purpose of purchasing, constructing, acquiring, extending, or improving public works. The City intends to 
use these funds for capital improvements for riverfront an d downtown development. During 2001, the City 
issued $4.88 m illion in revenue bonds for the purp ose of making capital improvements for riverfront and 
downtown development. These improvements will include the widening of Traffic Street. In 2002, the 

City expended approximately $2.7 million to purchase right of way for the Traffic Street project. The City 
has also budgeted approximately $3 million in sales tax capital improvement funds and $5.5 million in 
riverboat gaming funds for the Traffi c Street construction in 2003. The City has also appropriated 
$12,150,000 of riverboat gaming funds in 2003 for the Benton Road Overpass project. 

According to existing legislative acts of the State of Louisiana, the City is required to reimburse the 
Firemen's Pension an d Relief Fund and th e Policemen's Pension an d Relief Fund for operating deficits 
that may occur in any fiscal year. 

The City is exposed  to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, an d destruction of assets; 
errors an d omissions and natural disasters. Th e Insurance and Liability Insurance Funds are used to 
account for self-insured  activities involving workman 's compensation coverage and gr oup dental 

co verage. 

Payments are made from the operating funds to the Insuran ce Fund an d the Liability Insurance Fund which 
are accounted for as  internal serv ice fu nds. Paym ents are accounted  for as  revenues by th e receiving fu nd 
an d expenditures/expense by the paying fu nds. Th e City maintains stop-loss coverage with an  insurance 
company of $225,000 pe r occurrence for workmen's compe nsation coverage with an aggregate limit of 
$1,000,000. Employee life insurance premiums are also paid from the Insurance Fund. 
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Decem ber 31, 2002 

Liability policies are maintained by the City with third-party insurance carriers for its automobile, general 

liability, an d property damage exposures. These policies are subject to a $1,000,000 per occurrence limit 
with a $100,000 per occurrence retention for claims involving third parties. The City maintained property 
insurance during 2002 on approximately $90 million in City property, subject to a $100,000 per 
occurrence retention for property claims. The maximum cumulative amount of self-insured retentions 
related to automobile, general liability, and property claims is $700,000. 

There were no reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. No claims exceeded the 
City 's insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years. 

A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for claim s for the self-insurance funds is as follows 

Insurance Fund 
2001 
2002 

Liability lnsurance Fund 
2001 
2002 

Litigation 

Accrued 
claim s 

Januar~ ! 

35,000 
35,000 

515,816 
793,574 

Claim s 
incurred 

178,312 
226,635 

1,611,422 
1,078,726 

Claims paid 

178,312 
216,057 

1,333,664 
1,078,726 

Accrued 
claim s 

Decem ber 31 

35,000 
45,578 

793,574 
793,574 

The City is defendant in a number of legal actions, most of which are partially covered by insurance. 
There are certain suits, including employee discrimination and civil rights violations suits, which are in the 
early stages of discovery an d for which the availability of insurance coverage or estimates of the ultimate 
liability of the City cannot be determined. Resolution of some of these cases could involve liability to the 
City in excess of insurance lim its if the courts find in favor oftbe  various plaintiffs. The City evaluates the 
existing litigation and accrues appropriate amounts in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 5 as liabilities become probable and can be estimated. It is the policy of the City to pay uninsured 
judgments against the City on a current basis from the excess of revenues over expenditures. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY', LOUISIAN A 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 2002 

The City participates in federally assisted grant programs, principally Community Development Block 

Grant, and various construction grants. These progranls are subject to program compliance audits under 
the Single Audit Act. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement by th e grantor agency for 
expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. City management believes that the am ount of 
disallowan ces, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be material. 

Revenues From the State of Louisiana 

The General Fund receives various revenues from the State of Louisian a including cigarette tax, beer tax
, 

and traffi c signalization revenues. The continuation of these revenues at these am ounts is contingent on a 
variety of factors at the state level. 

(13) Changes in Accounting Principles 

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments; GASB 
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management "s Discussion and Analysis -for State 
and Local Governments: Omnibus; GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note 
Disclosures; and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and 

Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements. 

GASB Statem ent No. 34 creates new basic financial statements for reporting on the City's financial 
activities. Th e financial statements now include government-wide finan cial statements prepared on the 

accrual basis of accounting, and fund financial statements which present information for individual major 
funds rather than  by fu nd type which had been th e mode of presentation in previously issued finan cial 

statements. Nonmajor funds are presented in total in one column in the fund financial statements. 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 2002 

The implementation of GASB Statement No. 34 caused the opening fund balances at December 31,2001 
to be restated in term s of"net assets" as follows: 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds - at December 31, 2001 $ 77,136,755 
Add: Cost of capital assets at December 31, 200! 189,626,789 

Less: accumulated depreciation at 
Decem ber 31,2001 

Bond issue costs, net of accumulated amortization at 
Decem ber 31, 2001 

Net pension asset for the Policemen's Pension Fund at 
December 3 I, 2001 

Deferred revenue on property taxes at December 31, 
2001 

Deferred revenue on hotel motel taxes at December 31 
2001 

Internal service funds at December 3 I, 2001 
Perm anent Fund - Public Health and Safety at 
December 31,2001 

Less: Long-term  debt: 
Bond principal outstanding at December 31, 2001 
Net pension obligation for the Firemen's Pension Fund 
at December 31,2001 

Compensated absences payable at 
December 31, 2001 

Accrued interest payable at December 31,2001 

(25,239,837) 

889,181 

648,357 

156,704 

750,000 
83,475 

19,595,032 186,509,701 

62,385,000 

184,435 

714,723 
317,175 63,601,333 

$ 200,045,123 

Adoption of GASB Statements No. 37 an d 38 were required simultaneously with GASB Statement No. 34 
an d resulted in additional disclosures. At December 31, 2001, there was no effect on fund balance as  a 
result of implementation of GASB Interpretation No. 6. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Inform ation 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 2002 

(unaudited) 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determ ined as part of the actuarial 
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional inform ation as of the latest actuar ial valuation follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuar ial cost method 

Firem en's Fund Policem en's Fund 

1/1/03 

Entry age norm al cost Entry age norm al cost 

Amortization method Level percentage 

Rem aining amortiza tion period 10 year s - closed 

Asset valuation method  

Actuar ial assumptions: 
Investm ent rate of return  

Projected salary increases 

Cost-of-living adjustm ents 

Am ortization increase rate 

Fair value 

6.50%  

4.50%  

3.25%  

2.65%  

Level percentage 

10 years - closed 

Fair value 

6.50%  

N/A 

3.25%  

3.40%  



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis 

Year ended December 31, 2002 
(unaudited) 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Sales, net 
Ad valorem 
Utility 
Telephone 
Franchise: 

Cable television 
Chain store 
Taxi 

Licenses an d perm its 

Intergovcm m ental: 
Grants 
State and parish revenues: 

Supplemental pay 
Beer tax 
Special funds from State of Louisian a 

Fines an d penalties 
Racing Com m ission - Louisiana Downs 
Video poker 
Interest 
M iscellan eous: 
Payment in lieu of taxes - Federal Housing 

Authority 
Parks and re creation 
Engineering fees 
Enterprise funds an d Civic Center Fund pro rata 

share of general an d administrative 

expenses 
Police Departm ent revenues 
Other incom e 

Total m iscellan eous 

Total revenues 

O riginal 
and 
final 

budget 

8,173,080 
7,666,000 
1,000,000 
260,000 

395,000 
63,000 
6,500 

17,563,580 

1,954,000 

Actual on a 
budgetary 
basis 

8,090,235 
8,177,167 
1,026,894 
233,904 

481,322 
60,349 
6.000 

18r075~871 

2,045,831 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(82,845) 
511,167 
26,894 

(26,096) 

86,322 

(2,651) 
(500) 

512,291 

91,831 

170,000 168,882 (1,118) 

1,262,200 
110,000 
182,000 

1,724,200 

1,000,000 
330,000 
485,000 
75,000 

40,000 
220,000 
10,000 

4t6,500 
354,000 
235,000 

1~275~500 

1,198,240 
144,398 
178,649 

lr690r169 

1,130,637 
188,639 
544,952 
53,333 

47,128 
169,954 
32,666 

417,500 
289,530 
315~861 

1~272~639 

24,407,280 25t002r071 

(63,960) 
34,398 

(3,350 

(34~031) 
130,637 

(141,361) 
59,952 

(21,667) 

7,128 

(50,046) 
22,666 

1,000 

(64,470) 
80,861 

(2,861) 
594,791 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 2002 
(unaudited) 

Expenditat~s: 
Current: 

General govern ment: 
Adm inistration 
M unicipal building 
Finance 
City garage 
Traffi c engineering and safety 
Purchasing 
Engin eering 
Personnel 
Permits and inspections 
City attorn ey 
Public works 
City Council 
Comm unity development 
Anim al conlrol 
Inform ation services 
Payments to other governmental agencies 

Public ,~ fety: 
Fire 
Police 

Highways and streets 
Cu lture an d recreation 
City Court and Marshal 
City Court 
M arsbaPs offi ce 

Total expenditures 

Excess of expenditures over revenues 
Other financing sources (uses): 

Operating tran sfers in 
Tran sfer to component unit 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other sources over expenditures 
an d other uses 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See accompanying notes to combined l-manciai statements . 

O riginal 
and 
final 
budget 

423,296 
1,204,095 
695,806 
603,732 
706,982 
287,175 
640,759 
262,224 
533,829 
242,200 
209,461 
298,112 
327,392 
297,986 
562,815 

_  
915,560 

8,211,424 

8,096,679 
10,485,224 

18,586903 
1,038,758 
1,423,770 

512,630 
564.019 

1.076.649 

30,332,504 

0,925,224) 

2,028,937 
(132,650) 
2,896,287 

(3,028,937) 
4,628,863 

$ 
~  

1,599~ 926 

74 

Actual on a 
budgetary 
bas~ 

46~734 
1,214,962 
718,061 
620,493 
737,150 
294,694 
541,84t 
283,819 
550,305 
23~613 
221,708 
22~120 
300,526 
314,805 
579,331 
870,275 

8,172,164 
9,990,215 

18,1621379 
1,049,714 
1,309,890 

49~278 
541~299 

1,033,577 

29,722,997 

(4,72~926) 

6,ft6,754 

(132fi50) 
6,004,104 

1,283,178 

4,628~863 

5,912,041 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(37,438) 
(10,867) 
(22,255) 
(16,761) 
(30,168) 
(7,519) 
98,918 
(21,595) 
(16,476) 
3,587 

(12,247) 
77,992 
26,866 
(16,819) 
(16,516) 
~15,285 

43,987 

(75,485) 
495.009 

419,524 

(10,956) 
113,880 

20,352 
22,720 

43.072 

609,507 

1,204,298 

3,107,817 

3.107.817 

4,312,115 



Revenues: 
D irect event incom e 
Ancillary income 
Advertising 
Luxury box income 
Other incom e 

Total revenues 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Arena Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
, and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year ended December 31, 2002 
(unaudited) 

Expenditures - current - culture and recreation: 
Executive 
Finance 
Operations 
M arketing 
Box office 
Facility overhead 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

See accompanying notes to f'mancial statements. 

O riginal 
and 
final 

budget Actual 

357,571 
953,524 
908,000 
567,908 
72,924 

2,859,927 

211,703 
183,306 

1,136,131 
181,782 
119,936 

1.134.079 

382,891 
992,598 
937,789 
559,124 
237.647 

3.110.049 

207,174 
172,199 

1,331,825 
190,026 
107,976 
975,515 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

25,320 
39,074 
29,789 

(8,794) 
164.723 

250.122 

~529 
11,107 

(t95,694) 
(8,244) 
11,960 
158,564 

2,966,937 2,984,715 (17,778) 

(107,010) 

54.806 

75 

125,334 

54,806 

180.140 

232,344 

232,344 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

December 31, 2002 

(unaudited) 

Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The City utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statem ents: 

(1) Prior to October 15, the Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year 
commencing th e following January  1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means 
of financing them . 

(2) A public hearing is then conducted, after proper official journal notification, to obtain taxpayer comments 

(3) Prior to December 15, the budget is lcgally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

(4) Th e budget ordinance is structured such that revenues are budgeted by source, and appropriations are 
budgeted by department and by principal object of expenditure. The City Charter provides that 
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations on a departmental basis after considering fund 
surpluses or deficits. The Council may revise or amend the budget at its discretion during legally convened 
sessions. M anagement may amend the budget only below the department level. For th e year ended 
Decem be r 31, 2002, amendments were made to the budget for Hotel M otel Taxes, Fire Improvem ents an d 
Operations, and Jail and M unicipal Buildings. These amendments were to increase the budget for capital 

outlay for anticipated projects in 2002. 

(5) Comparison of budgeted and actual amounts as shown in the accompanying financial statements includes 
the General Fund and those special revenue funds which are included in the annual operating budget (Civic 
Center, Hotel M otel Taxes, Fire Improvements and Operations, Jail and M unicipal Buildings, Streets and 

Drainage and Arena). Annual operating budgets are not prepared for the State and Federal Gran t, Court 
W itness Fee, and Riverboat Gaming special revenue funds, but rather these funds are budgeted on a project 
basis. Th e capital budget ordinances which encompass the capital projects funds present cumulative as 
opposed to annual budget amounts and thus budget and actual comparisons are not reported in the 
accompan ying financial statements for these funds. Budgetary control for th e debt service funds is achieved 
through general bond indenture provisions. 

(6) All budgets are adopted on a basis substantially consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) except that payments to the Firemen's and Policemen's Pension Funds are not budgeted in the 
General Fund and administrative expenditures allocated to the State and Federal Grant special revenue fund 
are budgeted in the General Fund. Appropriations which are not expended lapse at year end, except 
appropriations for capital improvements, which do not lapse until the purpose of the appropriation has been 
accomplished or aban doned. 

(7) The City is legally required to prepare annual operating budgets for the Department of Water an d 
Sewerage, Sanitation, and the Emergency Medical Services. The City is not, however, required to present 
an actual-to-budget compar ison for the enterprise funds. Budgets are not prepared for the internal serv ice 
funds. 
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CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

(unaudited) 

Reconciliation of the Budgetary Basis and the GAAP Basis 

Adjustments necessary to convert the expenditures at the end of the year on the budgetary basis to the GAAP 
basis are as follows: 

Budgetary basis expe nses 

Administrative costs of State and Federal Grant 
Special Revenue Fund 

Sales taxes ded icated to Firemeu's and Policem en's 
Pension and Relief Funds 

G/LAP basis expenses 

Excess of Expenditures Over Budget - Major Funds 

G eneral Fund 

$ 29,722,997 

(168,882) 

5,759,387 

$ 35,313,502 

For those funds for which a budget to actual comparison was made, actual expenditures on a budgetary basis 
exceeded budgeted expenditures on a line item basis as follows: 

Fund 

General Fund: 
General govern ment: 
Administration 
M unicipal building 
Finance 
City garage 
Traffic engineering and safety 
Purchasing 
Personnel 
Permits and inspections 
Public works 
Animal control 
Information services 

Public safety - Fire 
Highways an d streets 

Special revenue funds: 
Arena Fund 
Fire Improvements and Operations Fund 

Actual on a 

423,296 
1,204,095 
695,806 
603,732 
706,982 
287,175 
262,224 
533,829 
209,461 
297,986 
562,815 

8,096,679 
1,038,758 

2,966,937 
213,500 

460,734 
1,214,962 
718,061 
620,493 
737,150 
294,694 
283,819 
550,305 
221,708 
314,805 
579,331 

8,172,164 
1,04~714 

2,984,715 
229,812 

Negative 
variance 

(37,438) 
(10,867) 
(22,255) 
(16,761) 
O0,168) 
(7,519) 
(21,595) 
(16,476) 
(12,247) 
(16,819) 
(16,516) 
(75,485) 
(10,956) 

(17,778) 
(16,312) 

(Continued) 



CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

December 3 l, 2002 

(unaudited) 

The unfavorable varian ce in administration is due primarily to a public information off/cer added to 
adm inistration for part of the year for which an amount was not included in the budget and additional general 
insurance allocation. Postage also increased because of unanticipated costs related to providing ozone awareness 
brochures to all citizens. The unfavorable varian ce in traffic engineering and safety is due primarily to tim ing of 

street light electricity payments an d increased street ligh t repair and maintenance costs. The unfavorable 
varian ce in personnel is due primarily to a newly implemented Employee Assistance Program (EAP) which was 
not considered in the budget. Th e negative varian ce in the Arena Fund is due to higher than anticipated repair 
and maintenance costs related to chiller equipment in the facility. 
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CO M BIN IN G A ND IND IVID UA L FU N D 
STA TEM EN TS A N D SCH ED U LES 



N O N M A JO R  G O V ER N M EN TA L 

FU N D S 

Special Revenue Funds 

State and Federal G rant - This fund accounts for the receipt and disbursement 
of fu nds received under the Community Development Block Grant and oth er 
grant programs. 

Court W itness Fee - This fu nd accounts for the proceeds of a special case 
charge on criminal matters. The revenues generated are dedicated to the 
payment of a special witness fee to law officers who are called to testify in City 
Court. 

Civic Center - This fund accounts for th e revenues received and operating 
expenses incurred in th e operations of the City's Civic Center Complex. 

H otel M otel Taxes - This fu nd accounts for the revenues received from taxes 
levied on the occupancy of hotel/motel rooms and related facilities. Th e 
revenues can only be used for riverboat/downtown developm ent and the 
operation and maintenan ce of the civic center an d multi-purpose arena. 

Fire Im provem ents and O perations - This fund accounts for the revenues 
received an d operating expenses incurred in th e construction and operation of 
tw o new fire stations an d a new training facility. 

Jail and M unicipal Buildings - Th is fu nd accounts for the revenues received 
and the operating expenses incurred to operate and m aintain the City Jail in 
accordance with  Federally M andated Standards and to operate and maintain 
City buildings. 

Streets and Drainage - This fund accounts for the revenues received and the 
ope rating expe nses incurred in maintaining and upgrading streets and drainage. 

Debt Service Funds 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund - Used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, genera l long-term debt 
principal, interest, an d related costs of th e 1979, 1991, 1993, 1998, and 2002 
bond series. 



Parkway Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund - Used to account for 
the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt 
principal, interest, and related costs of the 1997 and 2001 bond series. 

H otel M otel Bond Sinki ng and Reserve Fund - Used to account for the 
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt 
principal, interest, and related costs of the 2001 bond series. 

Capital Projects Funds 

Sales Tax Capital Im provem ent Fund - This fund is used to account for 

expenditures associated with street improvements, the Shed Road projects, and 
the Golden West project and is funded by the excess one-half cent sales tax 
after payment of debt service sales tax revenue bond issues and interest earned. 

Parkw ay Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for 
m iscellaneous capital expenditu res as budgeted by the City Council an d is 
funded by the excess one-half cent sales tax  after payment of debt service on the 
Parkway Bond Issue and interest earned. 

Traffi c Street Bond Construction Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
capital improvements associated with riverfront and downtown development 
and is fu nded by the 2001 bond proceeds an d interest earned. 

Special Project Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures 
associated with the completion of the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway and is 
funded w ith the refu nding of the 1979 Single Family M ortgage Revenue Bond 
Issue. No more fu nds will he transferred into this fund. 

Land Acquisition Fund - This fund is used to account for special lan d 
purchases and sales not associated with bond issue related expenditu res. 

Equipment Replacement Fund - This fu nd is used to account for purchases 
an d sales of various equipment not associated with bond issue related 
expenditures. 



Assets 

AssetS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net 
Taxes - other 
Accrued interest 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governmen tal units 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balan ces: 
Reserved: 
Debt service 
Encumbrances 

Unreserved: 
Designated for subsequent 
year's expenditure 

Undesigaat~  

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIA NA 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet- By Fund Type 
Governmental Activities 

December 31, 2002 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

1,168,646 
7,529,221 

412,697 
88,539 
76,796 

1,146,048 

$ 1~421,947 

Debt 
Service 
Funds 

224,255 
8,88~851 

638,651 
79,123 

Capital 
Projects 
Funds Total 

226,351 
8,963,834 

523,875 
90,327 
216,042 

1,61~252 
25,373,906 

1,575,223 
257,989 
292,838 

1,146,048 

9,822,880 10,020,429 30,265,256 

179,085 2,320 

152,585 
80~437 

577,384 
9,820,560 

297,830 479,235 
--  152,585 

297,830 

650,39~ 

~072,208 

802,437 

1,434,257 

9,820,560 
1,227,775 

9,072,208 
8,710,456 

9,287,840 9,820,560 9,722,599 28,830,999 

See accompanying independent auditors'.report. 



Revenues: 
Taxes  
[ntergovem men tal 
Fees and rentals 
Fines and penalties 
Investment earnings 
M iscellan eous 

Totalrevenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General govem man t 
Culture and recreation 
City Court and M arshal 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expe nditures 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Com bining Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances - By Fund Type 

Governmental Activities 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other finan cing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net chan ge in fund balan ces 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

Fund balan ces at end of year 

See accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

Special 

Revenue 

Funds 

4,058,883 
2,39%139 
216,893 
24,177 
288,588 
49.962 

Debt 
Service 
Funds 

Capita l 

Pr~ec~ 
Funds To~ l 

6,329,078 5,104,122 

272,262 
4.475 

350,112 
43.413 

7,035,642 6,605,815 5,497,647 

710,508 
574,026 
13,390 
784,778 

3,082,702 

3,750,000 
3,123,751 

8,129,126 

8,129,126 

15,492,083 
2,397,139 
216,893 
24,177 

91~962 
97.850 

19,139,104 

710,508 
574,026 
13,390 

9,913,904 

3,750,000 
3,123,751 

18,085,579 

3,952,940 (267,936) (2,631,479) 1,053,525 

300,000 

(4,043,167) 

(3,743,167) 

209,773 

2,t32,616 

(35,900) 
2,096,716 

1,828,780 

9,078,067 7,991,780 

2,468,516 

(4,666,318) 
(2,197,802) 

(3,182,830) (1,144,277) 

12,905,429 29,975,276 

9,722,599 
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Revenues: 
Rental fees 
Investment earnings 
M iscellaneous 

Tota l revenues 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Civic Center Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Expenditures: 
Culture and recreation: 
Salaries, fringe benefits, and payroll taxes 
Insurance 
Professional services 
Contract services 
Utilities 
Office and operating supplies 
A dm inistrative expenses 
Travel and train ing 
M aintenance 
Other 

Capital outlay 

Tota l expenditures 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

O riginal 
and 
final 

budget 

194~oo 
30,000 
35.150 

259.150 

286,422 
61,900 
2,000 
5,000 

136,700 
48,950 

2L500 
4,000 
31,000 
132,000 
735~ 72 

Actual 

216,893 
23,502 
49.962 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

(negative} 

22,893 

(6,498) 
14.812 

325,221 
24,662 

6,892 
113,621 
50,262 
4,486 
3,907 
21,937 
23,038 
2.290 

(38,799) 
37,238 
2,000 

(1,892) 
23,079 

(1,312) 
23,014 

93 
9,063 

108,962 
733.182 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (1,211,794) (285r959} 

Other financing sources: 
Tran sfer in 

Net chan ge in fund balan ce 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year $ 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents. 

445.437 300.000 

(766,357) 

963.077 

196.720 

83 

14,041 

963.077 

977.118 

925.835 

(145~37) 
780,398 

780,398 



 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Hotel M otel Taxes 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget an d Actual 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

O riginal 
budget 

Revenues: 
Intergovernm ental - state and parish 
shared revenues $ 1,800,000 

Investm ent earnings 120,000 

Final 
budget 

1,800,000 
120.000 

Total revenues 1,920,000 1,920,000 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 

Exce ss of revenues over 
expenditures 

Other financing uses 
Transfer out 

Net change in land balan ce 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 

Fund balan ce at end of year 

Actual 

1,686,631 
108,387 

1.795.018 

600.000 1.000.000 84%759 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(113,369) 
(11,613) 

152,241 

1,320,000 920,000 947,259 27,259 

(450,000) 
870,000 

(450,000) 
47o, ooo 

(935,350) 
11,909 

485,350 

512,609 

$ 4,230,357 3,830,357 3,372,266 512r609 

See accompan ying notes to combined Finan cial statem ents. 



Revenues: 

CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Fire Improvements and Operations Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance- Budget and Actual 

Dec em ber 31, 2002 

O riginal 
budget 

Sales tax, net $ 1,632,817 
Investm ent earnings 5,000 

Total revenues 1,637,817 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 1,637,817 

Other f'maneing uses: 

Transfer out ( 1,632~817) 
Net change in fund balan ce 5,000 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 352,980 

Fund balan ce at end of year $ 357,980 

See accompanying notes to com bined f'man cial statements. 
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Final 

budget 

1,632,817 
5,o0o 

1,637,817 

2131500 

1,424,317 

(1,632,817) 
(2o8,500) 

3521980 

144.480 

Actual 

Variance w ith 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(32,071) 
377 

(31~694) 

(16,312) 

(48,006) 

(48,006) 

(48,006) 



Revenues: 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIA NA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Jail and M unicipal Buildings Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balan ce - Budget and Actual 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

O riginal 

budget 

Sales tax, net $ 1,166,297 
Investm ent earnings 110,000 

Total revenues 
. 

1,276,297 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 200,000 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

. . 
1,076r297 

Other fmancing uses: 

Transfer out (875,000) 
N et change in fund balance 201,297 

Fund balance at beginning of year 
. 

3z071,464 

Fund balan ce at end of year $ 
__  

3,272,761 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

Final 
budget 

1,166,297 
110,000 

1,276,297 

862,600 

413,697 

(875,000) 

(461,303) 

3~071~464 

2,610,161 

Actual 

1,143,320 
100,266 

1,243,586 

501,71 l 

741,875 

(875,000) 

(133,125) 

3,071,464 

2,938,339 

Variance with 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(22,977) 
(9,734) 

(32,711) 

360,889 

328,178 

328,178 

328,178 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Streets and Drainage Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

December 31, 2002 

Revenues; 
Sales tax, net 
Investm ent earaings 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 

Excess of revenues over expenditu res 

Other financing uses: 
Transfer out 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

See accompan ying notes to combined financial statements. 

O riginal 
and 
final 

budget 

$ 1,341,242 
151000 

1,356,242 

1,0001000 

356,242 

(600,000) 

(243,758) 

1,300,251 

$ 1.056.493 

Actual 

203,206 

1,162,589 

(600,000) 
562,589 

1,300,251 

Variance w ith 
final budget 
positive 

(negative) 

(26,425) 
35,978 

9fi53 

796,794 

806,347 

806,347 

1,862~840 806r347 



Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 
Accounts receivable - taxes 
Accrued interest 

Total assets 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIA NA 

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheet 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Accounts payable 
Fund balan ces - reserved for debt serv ice 

Parkway 
Sales Sales Tax 

Tax Bond Bond Sinking 
Sinking and and Reserve 
Reserve Fund Fund 

$ 150,706 
5,968,206 
482,944 
50,489 

55,240 
2,187,570 
155,707 
21.600 

Hotel 
M otel 
Bond 

Sinking and 
Reserv e Fund Total 

18,309 
725,075 

7.034 

224,255 
8,880,851 
638,651 
79.123 

$ 6,652,345 2,420,117 7501418 9,822,880 

$ 2,320 
6,650,025 2.420.117 750.418 

2,320 
9,820,560 

Tota l liabilities and 
fund balance $ 6,652,345 2,420,117 750,418 9,822,880 

See accom pan ying notes to combined financial statements. 



 

CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Parkway 
Sales Sales Tax 

Tax Bond Bond Sinking 
Sinkingand and Res erve 
Res erv eFund Fund 

Revenaes: 
Taxes - sales, net $ 4,460,600 
Investm ent earnings 176,502 
M iscellaneous other income 

Torn| revenues 

Expenditures - debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Tomlexpendimrc s 

Excess(deficiency) ofrcvenues 
over(unde0 expendimrcs 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 
Tra nsfers out 

Total other finan cing sources 

(uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances at the beginning of year 

Fund balan ces at the end of year 

4.637.102 

2,210,000 
2,1561004 

4,366,004 

271,098 

1,409,179 

(35,900) 

1,868,478 
71,128 
3,036 

1,120,000 
798~154 

1,918,154 

24,488 

88,087 

H otel 
M otel 
Bond 

Sinking and 
Res erve Fund Total 

24,632 
1.439 

26.071 

420,000 

16~593 

589,593 

6,329,078 
272,262 
4.475 

3,750,000 
3.123.751 

6.873.751 

(563,522) (267,936) 

635,350 2,132,616 

(35,900) 

1,644,377 

5.005.648 

112,575 

2,307,542 

7t,828 

678r590 

1,828,780 

7,991.780 

$ 6r650,025 2,420,117 750,418 9~820,560 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 
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N O N M A JO R  EN TER PRISE 

FUN D S 

Sanitation - Operated as a self-sustaining service of the City and is responsible 
for providing the residents of the City of Bossier City sanitation serv ices. 

Em ergency M edical Services - Operated as a self-sustaining serv ice of the 
City and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of Bossier City 
with emergency medical services. 



Assets 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
Com bining Statem ent of Net Assets 

December 31, 2002 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable - custom ers 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

Accrued interest receivable 
Others accounts receivable 

Total current as sets 

Capital assets: 
Equipm ent 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total capital as sets, net of 
accumulated depreciation 

Total as sets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Acco unts payable 
Accrued  expenses 
Compensated ab sences 
Due to other funds 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities - compe nsated absences 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital as sets, net of depreciation 
Unrestricted 

Total net as sets 

Emergency 
M edical 

Sanitation Services Total 

77,972 
243,944 

(62,952) 
180,992 

819 
90~533 

1,366,966 

(6591420) 
707,546 

49.787 

3507316 757,333 

1,242,519 

(1,143~642) 

77,972 
1,610,910 

(722,372) 

888,538 
819 

140,320 

1.107.649 

1,242,519 

(1r143,642) 

98,877 98,877 

350,316 856,210 
__  

1,206z526 

1,367 
4,900 
9,590 

15.857 

30,952 
38,664 
78,940 
219,236 

367.792 

69.127 

18~ 179 436~919 

332,137 

332,137 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

98,877 
320.414 

419~91 

32,319 
43,564 
88,530 
219,236 

383.649 

71.449 

455.098 

98,877 
652,551 

751,428 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

Year ended December 3 l, 2002 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 

Sanitation fees 
Ambulance fees 

M iscellan eous - other revenues 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Personal services 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs and m aintenan ce 
Contractual expenses 
Provision for bad debts 
M iscellaneous 
Depreciation and am ortization 

Total expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest in com e 
Interest expense 
Intergovernm ental 

Total nonoperating revenues 

(expenses) 

Chan ge in net assets 

N et assets at beginning of year  

Net assets at end of year 

See accompan ying notes to combined financial statements. 

Sanitation 

2,608,353 

2,608,353 

55t615 

Em ergency 
M edical 
Services Total 

--  2,608,353 
3,313,671 3,313,671 

3,313,671 5,922,024 

--  55.615 

2,663,968 3,313,671 5,977r639 

290,278 
105,578 
3,542 
12,268 

1,866,332 
34,842 
52,060 

2,082,170 
143,678 
31,246 
24.184 

696,910 
282,215 
74~147 

2,364,900 3,334,550 

299.068 

3,521 

29~548 

33.069 

2,372,448 
249,256 
34,788 
36,452 

1,866,332 
731,752 
334,275 
74.147 

5.699.450 

(20,879) 278,189 

(3,405) 
3,521 

(3,405) 
29,548 

332,137 (24,284) 307,853 

332.137 

93 

443r575 443fi75 
419~291 75t.428 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIA NA 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
Com bining Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from operations $ 
Paym ents to suppliers 
Paym ents to employees 
Other paym ents 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Net cas h provided by noncapital financing activities - 
intergovem mental revenues 

Net cash used in capital and related finan cing 
activities - interest paid 

Net cas h provided by investing activities - interest 
received 

Net increase in cash an d cash equivalents 

Cas h and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash an d cas h equivalents at end of year 

Sanita tion 

2,427,36 l 

(2,073,255) 
(273,466) 
(34,918) 
45.722 

2~702 

77,972 

$ 77,972 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) $ 

Depreciation and am ortization 
Provision for bad debts 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable 
Other receivable 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 

299,068 

34,842 

(215,834) 
(90,533) 

1,367 
16,812 

Em ergency 
M edical 
Services Total 

3,190,992 

(1,153,002) 
(2,005,673) 
(28,912) 
3.405 

5,618,353 

(3,226~57) 
(2,279,139) 
(63,830) 

49.127 

(20,879) 
74,147 
696,910 

(819,589) 
4,714 

25,231 
76,497 

(33,626) 
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 45,722 3,405 

See accom panying notes to com bined finan cial statem ents. 

2,702 

77,972 

77.972 

278,189 
74,147 
731,752 

(1,035,423) 
(85,819) 

26,598 
93,309 

(33,626) 
49.127 



IN TERN A L SER V IC E 

FU N D S 

The internal service funds are used to account for the costs of providing 
insurance coverage for the City. The City has tw o internal serv ice funds, 

Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for contributions from City 
departments and withholdings from employee's payroll used to pay the costs of 
providing group dental coverage for City employees. 

Liability Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for contributions from 
City departments for the payment of workmen's compensation and liability 
insurance claims. 



Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 
Prepaid items 

Total as sets 

CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Intern al Service Funds 

Com bining Statem ent of Net Assets 

December 31, 2002 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable 
Accrued claims 

Total liabilities 

Net assets - unrestricted 

Total liabilities and net as sets 

See accom panying notes to combined financial statem ents 

Insurance 
Fund 

1,846 
73,128 

74~974 

29,396 
45r578 

74,974 

74,974 

Liability 
Insurance 
Fund Total 

12,689 

502~83 
54I~980 

1.057.152 

111,135 
793.574 

904,709 

152,443 

1.057.152 

14,535 
575,611 
541,980 

1,132,126 

140,531 
839.152 

979,683 

152,443 



 

CITY OF BOSSIER CIT Y , LO UISIA NA 

Internal Service Funds 

Com bining Statem ent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund N et Assets 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Revenues: 
Employers' contributions/prem iums 
Employees' contributions 
Refunds and reimbursements 

Total operating revenues 

Expenses: 
Claim s 
Em ployee insurance prem iums 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

Operatifig income Ooss) 

Nonope rating revenues - investm ent earnings 

Chan ge in net assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See accom panying notes to combined finan cial statements. 

Insurance 
Fund 

190,000 
171,033 
23A88 

Liability 
Insurance 
Fund Total 

2,069,547 

126A05 

2,259,547 
171,033 
149.893 

384~521 2,195~952 2,580,473 

226,635 
136,607 
30,057 

393,299 

(8,778) 

142 

(8,636) 

8.636 

1,078,726 
1,038,394 

3,585 

2,120,705 

75,247 

2,357 

77,604 

74.839 

1,305,361 
1,175,00t 
33.642 

2,514,004 

66,469 

2~499 

68,968 

83.475 

152,443 152~443 



Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from operations 
Payments to suppliers 
Claim s paid 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 2002 

Insurance 
Fund 

384,521 
(133,923) 
(216,057) . 

Liability 
Insurance 
Fund Total 

2,195,952 
(1,272,349) 
(1,078,726) 

2,580,473 
(1,406,272) 
(1,294,783) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 34,541 ( 155,123 ) ( 120,582) 

Cas h flows from investing activities: 
Interest income 
Purchases of in vestm ents 

Net cash used in investing activities 

N et decreas e in cash 

Cas h and cas h equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash an d cas h equivalents at end of year 

(72,986) 

(72,98@  

(38,445) 

40,291 

1,846 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net 
cash provided by (used in) ope rating activities 
Operafmg income (loss) $ (8,778) 
(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Prepaid expense an d other 3,345 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 29,396 
Accrued claims 10,578 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
ope rating activities $ 34,541 

See accompan ying notes to combined financial statements. 
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1,378 

(574,490) 

(573,112) 
(693,694) 

708,229 

14,535 

75,247 66,469 

008,682) (305,337) 

78,312 107,708 
--  10,578 



STA TISTICA L 
SEC TIO N 



 

M M M  



 



 



Fiscal 
Year 

1993 
1994 
1995 

1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 

2000 
2001 
2002 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY , LOUISIA NA 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Fiscal years ended Decem ber 31, 1993 through Decem ber 31, 2002 

Assessed 
Value 

$ 159,654,090 
163,245,850 
184,287,480 
203,005,170 

225,760,430 
243,058,780 
256,358,740 
296,336,780 

296,288,890 
309,006,730 

Estim ated 
Actual 
Value 

1,393,4t2,567 
1,417,208,267 
1,582,975,867 
1,746,294,018 
1,938,471,413 
2,089,466,520 
2,t76,533,580 
2,613,187,787 

2,690,417,219 
2,77

_ __
6,340,791 

Note: 
Assessed values are established by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor on 
Jan uary 1 of each year at approximately 10-15% of assumed market value. 
A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than  every 
4 years. The last revaluation was completed for the roll of January 1, 2000 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Table 4 

Percent of 
Total 

Assessed to 
Estim ated 
Actual 
Value 

11.46%  
11.52%  
11.64%  
11.62%  
11.65% 
11.63%  
11.78%  
11.34%  
11.01% 
11.13% 
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Jurisdiction 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY , LO UISIA NA 

Com putation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

December 31, 2002 

Net Debt 

Percentage 
of D ebt 

Applicable 
to the 

Table 8 

City's Share 
of Debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt - Bossier 
Parish, Louisiana, Bossier Parish School 
Board $ 10,562,590 67% $ 7,076,935 

Notes: 
(I) Based on 2002 assessed valuation. 
(2) As ofDecember 31, 2OO2, there are no general obligation bonds recorded in 

the financial statements of the City. 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 



Fiscal 
Year 

1993 $ 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 

CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures 
for General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures 

Fiscal years ended Decem ber 31, 1993 through Decem ber 31, 2002 

Principal 

490,000 
490,000 

493,389 (2) 
--  (3) 

Interest 

103,214 
77,311 
49,844 

Total 
Debt 
Service 

593,214 
567,311 
543,233 

Table 9 

Debt 
Service 
as a 

Percentage 
Total of Total 
General G eneral 

Expenditures (1) Expenditures 

17,108,435 3.47 
18,139,723 3.13 

21,087,187 (4) 2.58 
22,854,525 
27,783,485 
30,103,059 
32,169,567 
33,906,728 
36,286,830 

Notes: 
(l) Includes General Fund expenditures only. 
(2) Does not include $741,981 paid by the City to advance refund bonds. 
(3) All general bonded debt was advance refunded in 1995. 
(4) In 1995, general expenditures began including state supplemental pay 

Unaudited - see accom panying independent auditors' report. 



 



~~1 0.0 Nmm m ~ m .~ ~mm 
e 7 

~ .~ 
.~ i~ 

r.) 0 0 

~-'-d "d ~  



Fiscal 
Y ear 

1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Demographic Statistics 

Fiscal years ended December 31, 1993 through Decem ber 31, 2002 

54,507 
55,653 
55,988 
56,3O4 
57,141 
57,533 
58,977 
58,977 
58,977 
58,977 

M edian 
Age (1) 
30.7 
30.7 
30.7 
29.8 
30.0 
31.6 
31.6 
31.6 
31.6 
31.6 

School 

Enrollment(2) 
12,188 
12,024 
12,386 
12,772 
12,915 
12,277 
11,601 
II,719 
11,844 
18,874 

N otes: 
(1) State of Louisiana Research and Statistics for 1988-1992, Shreveport, Bossier, and 

W ebster Parish Unemployment and M edian Age Information from the Louisiana 
Office of Statistics for 1993-1998. 

(2) Bossier Parish School Board (inside City limits) 
(3) Per Special Census 
(4) 1990 U.S. Census 
(5) Latest statistical inform ation under protest. 

Unaudited - see accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Table 11 

Unem ploym ent 

Rate (1) 

9.8%  
7.6%  
7.3%  
6.9% 
6.3% 
5.6%  
5.0%  
4.9%  
6.7% 
7.4%  
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Taxpayer 

Horseshoe Entertainment 
Southwestern Electric Power 
Com pany 

ICH LLC 
BellSouth Tel 
Louisiana Riverboat Gam ing 
Hibern ia Bank 
Isle of Capri 
N orthwest Pipe Company 
W aI-M art 
Lo uisiana M achinery. 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Principal Taxpayers 

December 31, 2002 

Type of 
Business 

2002 
Assessed 
V aluation 

Table 13 

Percentage 
of Total 
Assessed 
Valuation 

Riverboat Gambling $ 32,881,640 10.64% 

Electric Utility 
Hotel 
Telephone 
Riverboat Gambling 
Ban king 
Riverboat Gam bling 
M anufacturing 
Retail Sales 
M anufacturing 

Total amount for ten principal taxpayers 
Tota l for remaining taxpayers 

Total amount for all taxpayers 

Unaudited - see accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

6,813,810 
5,848,820 
5,414,200 
4,103,160 
2,724,020 
2,695,730 
2,509,130 
2,458,120 
2,448,020 

67,896,650 
241.110.080 

$ 309,006,730 

2.21%  
1.89%  
1,75%  
1.33%  
0.88%  
0.87%  
0.81%  
0.80%  
0.79% 

21.97%  
78.03%  

100.00%  



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

M iscellaneous Statistics 

December 31, 2002 

Date of settlement 

Form of government 

Date established 

Date of incorporation 

Area-square m iles 

M iles of streets: 
Paved 
Unim proved 

Police protection - number of policem en and officers 

Fire protection - number of firem en and offi cers 

Recreation'. 
Parks- number of acres 
N um ber of playgrounds 
N um ber of picnic areas 

Num ber of street lights 

Number of water storage tanks 

Total capacity of water storage tanks 

Raw water reservoir capacity 

M unicipal water plant: 
Num ber of accounts 
Daily average consumption 

Employees - classified, appointed, elected, an d exem pt 

Unaudited - see accompan ying independent auditors' report. 

112 

Table 14 

1843 

M ayor-Council 

1977 

1907 

41.36 

207.4 

196 

195 

287 
17 
8 

4,522 

3 

5,500,000 gallons 

5,700,000 gallons 

21,237 
8,573,000 gallons 

896 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY , LO UISIANA 

OM B Circular A -133 Reports 

Decem ber 31, 2002 

(W ith Independent Auditors' Reports Thereon) 
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333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Com pliance and on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents 
Performed  in Accordance W ith Government Auditing Standards 

The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the finan cial statements of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana as of and for the year ended 
Dece mber 31, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated M arch 21, 2003, which includes an 
explan atory paragraph due to a chan ge in accounting principles in 2002. W e conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Am erica an d the stan dards 
applicable to finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of th e United States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reas onable assuran ce about whether the City of Bossier City, Louisian a's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed  tests of its co mpliance  with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and gran ts, noncomplian ce with which could have a direct an d material 
effect on th e determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an  opinion on complian ce 

with those provisions was not an  objective of our audit an d, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our  tests disclosed  an instance of noncomplian ce  th at is required to be reported 
under Govern ment Auditing Standards  an d which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
an d questioned  co sts as item 02-1. 

Internal Control Ov er Financial Reporting 

In plan ning and perform ing our audit, we considered the City of Bossier City, Louisian a's internal control 
over finan cial reporting in order to determ ine our auditing proced ures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on th e finan cial statements an d not to provide as sur ance on the internal control over finan cial 
reporting. Our consideration of intern al control over finan cial reporting would not necessarily disclose all 
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in 
which th e design or operation of one or more of the intern al control components does not reduce to a 
relatively low level the risk that misstatements in am oun ts that would be material in relation to th e 
f'man eial statements being audited may occ ur an d not be detected within a timely period by employees in 
th e norm al course of performing their as signed functions. W e noted  no matters involving the internal 
co ntrol over finan cial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we 
noted other matters involving th e intern al control over fman cial reporting, which we have reported to 
man agement of the City of Bossier City, Louisian a in a separate letter da ted  M arch 21, 2003. 



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the M ayor, City Council, management, State 
of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended 
to be an d should not be used by an yone other th an  these specified  parties. 

M arch 21, 2003 



333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 

Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Com pliance W ith Requirem ents Applicable to 

M ajor Programs and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance 
W ith OM B Circular A-133 and on the Schedule of Expenditnre s of Federal Award s 

The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

Com pliance  

W e have audited the compliance of the City of Bossier City, Louisian a with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the US. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 
2002. Th e City of Bossier City, Louisiana's major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of th e accompanying schedule of findings an d questioned costs. Complian ce with 

the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs 
is the responsibility of the City of Bossier City, Louisian a's man agement. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on the City of Bossier City, Louisian a's complian ce based on our audit. 

W e conducted our  audit of complian ce in accordance  with auditing standards generally accepted in th e 
United  States of America; th e standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Aud iting 

Stan dards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan  an d perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur ance  about whether noncomplian ce 
with the types of complian ce requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 

a major federal program occurred. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of 
Bossier City, Louisian a's complian ce with those req uirements and perform ing such oth er procedures as we 
considered nece ssary in the circum stances. W e believe th at our audit provides a reas onable basis for our  
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Bossier City, Louisian a's 
compliance with those requirem ents . 

In our opinion, th e City of Bossier City, Louisian a complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 

referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 
2002. However, th e results of our auditing procedures disclosed an  instance of noncomplian ce with those 
requirements, which is req uired to be reported in acco rdan ce with OM B Circular A-133 and which is 
described in th e accompan ying schedule of findings an d questioned costs as item 02-2. 



Internal Control Over Com pliance 

The management of the City of Bossier City, Louisian a is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective intern al control over complian ce with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, an d grants 
applicable to federal program s. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Bossier 
City, Louisian a's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance an d to test and report on the internal control over complian ce in 
accordance with OM B Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal control over complian ce would not necessar ily disclose all matters in the 
intern al control that m ight be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which th e design 
or operation of one or more of the intern al control components does not reduce  to a re latively low level the 
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regu lations, contracts, an d gran ts that would 

be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a 
timely period by employees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no 
m atters involving the intern al co ntrol over co mplian ce  an d its ope ration that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

W e have audited the financial statements of the City of Bossier City, Louisian a as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2002, and have issued our  report thereon dated M arch 21, 2003, which includes an  
explan atory paragraph due to a change in accounting principle in 2002. Our audit was perform ed for the 
purpose of forming an opinion on the fmaneial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as  required by OM B 

Cireular A-133, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected 
to th e auditing proced ures applied  in the audit of the finan cial statements and in our  opinion, is fairly 
stated , in all material re spects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Th is report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of the M ayor, City Council, man agement, State 
of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended 
to be an d should not be used by anyone other th an th ese specified parties. 

M arch 21, 2003 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/program or cluster 

U.S. Departm ent of H ousing and Urban Developm ent 
Direct programs: 
Community Development Block Grant 
Em ergency Shelter Grants Program 

Total Departm ent of Housing an d Urban  Development 

U.S. Departm ent of Justice 
Passed through Louisian a Comm ission on Law Enforcement: 
Domestic Violence 
Local Law Enforcem ent 

Federal 
CFDA 
num ber 

14.218 
14.231 

16.575 
16.592 

Total Departm ent of Justice 

U.S. Department of Environmental Quality 
Passed through State of Louisian a Departm ent of Environmental 
Quality - Clean W ater Program 66.458 

Federa l 
expenditures 

$ 673,743 
39,200 

712,943 

24,636 
108,367 

133.003 

Federal Em ergency M anagem ent Association 
Pas sed through Louisian a Department of M ilitary - Office 
of Emergency Preparedness -Hazard M itigation Program  83.548 405,118 

U .S. D epart m ent of Transportation 
Pas sed through Lo uisian a Highway Planning an d Construction - 
Buckle Up Lo uisian a '98 20.600 4,444 

Total expenditures of federal awards $ 1,948,458 



Basis of Presentation 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
City of Bossier City, Louisian a and is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OM B Circular A-133, 

Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Th erefore, some m ounts presented in 
this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic finan cial 
statem ents. 

Subreeipients 

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Bossier City, Louisiana provided federal 
awards to subreeipients as follows: 

Community Development Block Gran t 

Federal 
CFDA 
num ber 

A m ount 
provided to 
subrecipients 

14.218 $ 80,855 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended Dece mber 31, 2002 

Section 1 - Sum m ary of Auditor's Results 

General Purpose Financial Statements 

Type of repo rt issued: unqualified opinion 

Intern al control over financial reporting: 

~ M aterial weaknesses identified? N_ ._o 

~ Repo rtable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the general purpose finan cial 
statements? None reported 

Noncompliance m aterial to general purpose financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

~ M aterial weaknesses identified ? No 

~ Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs? None reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on complian ce for major program s: unqualified opinion 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordan ce with section 510(a) of OMB Circular 
A-1337 Yes 

Identification of major programs: 

14.218 

83.548 

r 

United States Department of Housing and 
Urban  Development - Community 
Development Block Gran t 

Federal Em ergency M an agement Association 
-  Hazard M itigation Progr am 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Typ e A an d Typ e B programs: $300,000 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under section 530 of OM B Circular A-133: Ye._ __~s 

7 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 31, 2002 

Section 2 - General Purpose Financial Statement Findings Reported in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards 

Item :0~ l 

State law requires that th e total proposed expenditures shall not exceed th e 
total of estimated funds available for the year . This law was violated when the CenturyTel Center Arena Fund 
was budgeted to have a deficit fund balan ce. 

The 2002 budget for the CenturyTel Center Arena Fund budgeted a fund deficit of 
$52,204. 

Effect: The City of Bossier City was not in compliance  with state law 

Recommendation: Th e City of Bossier City should take steps to ensure that future budgets are balanced as 
required by state law. 

Section 3 - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs 



CITY O F BO SSIER  CITY, LO UISIAN A 

CO RRECTIV E A CTIO N PLAN 

YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2002 

Finding 02-1 

Name of Contact Responsible: Charles Glover, Director of Finance 

Corrective Action Planned: The Century Tel Center Fund has budgeted net income of $53,711 for 2003 

W e have discussed this matter with the Century Tel Cen ter Director of Finance. Transfers in from the City 
to eliminate any operating deficits in will be reflected in the Century Tel budget in future years. 

Completion Date: Th ese changes wer e implemented June 15, 2003 

Finding 02-2 

Nam e of Contact Responsible: Charles Glover , Director of Finance 

Corrective Action Planned: W e will require the individual to sign her personal activity report. 

Completion Date: Th is procedure was implem en ted im m ediately 



M arch 21, 2003 

:333 Texas Street, Suite 1900 

Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the financial statements of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the City) for the year 
ended December 31, 2002, an d have issued our report thereon dated M arch 21, 2003, which includes an 
explanatory paragraph due to changes in accounting principles in 2002. In planning and performing our 
audit of the financial statements of the City, we considered its internal control in order to determ ine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. An audit does 
not include exam ining the effectiveness of internal control and does not provide assurance on internal 
control. W e have not considered internal control since th e date of our report. 

During our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal control an d its operation that are presented 
for your consideration. These comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with the 
appropriate membe rs of m an agement, are intended  to improve internal control or result in other operating 
effi ciencies and are summ ar ized as follows: 

The City records investm ents on a pooled basis along with cash an d accrued interest. The allocation to the 
individual funds is recorded in one account as cash and is not separated into the components of cash, 

investments, and accrued interest. As a result, significant year-end adjustments are required. At the time of 
purchase, the City should determ ine if the investment is short-term or long-term based on its maturity date 
and appropriate classification be made within the general ledger. W e recommend that in the clearing 
account the City establish separate acc ounts for short and long-term  investm ents. Each separate account 
should be  allocated to individual funds and each fund should reflect a separate account for cash, short-term  
investments, long-term investments, and accrued interest. 

M anagement's Response - Th e City will make all adjustm ents at year-end and any interim reporting date 
in the individual fu nds to reflect all amounts over 90 days in the appropriate classification of cash, short- 
term investments and long-term investments, along with the appropriate allocation of accrued interest. 



Tile Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City 
M arch 21, 2003 
Page 2 

T 

The subledgers for the property and sales tax collections are not reconciled to the general ledger. Currently 
the property tax department operates a module of the HtE system that indicates the amount received and 
remaining amount receivable. In addition, the sales tax department uses the Taxman program to record 
receipts and amounts due to the City. W e recommend that a control be implemented to reconcile the 
subledgers for property and sales taxes to the general ledger on at least a monthly basis. However, for 
property taxes we recommend that this control be performed at least weekly during the months of 

November, December, and January, as the majority of property taxes are collected during this period. 

M anagem ent's Response - The tax department currently sends a daily collection sheet to the accounting 
department that is used to post sales tax entries to the general ledger on a daily basis. The sales tax and 
property "lax departments will begin attaching the cash-posting sheet for the Taxman program and th e HtE 
property tax progr am which will indicate postings to the individual programs reconcile to the postings to 
the general ledger. W e will also prepare a formal reconciliation of the general ledger to the sales tax 
subledger on a monthly bas is. From November to January, we will perform the property tax control 
weekly. 

W ith the implementation of Govern mental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, the City is now 
required to report capital as sets for governmental activities in its financial statements. Capital assets can 
have a significan t impact on the f'mancial results reported by the City. Given this, we believe tbat controls 
over recording and accounting for capital as sets can be strengthened. Specifically, in some instances, 
purchases were made during the year for ca pital as sets that did not appear on the capital assets records. 
Also, the City did not report any retirements or disposals of capital assets. W e reco mmend the City 
implement pro cedures to identify capital assets at the time invoices are coded. This process should include 
a review to ensure that all purchases have been coded to the correct expenditure accounts in the general 
ledger as well as the identification of all capital assets and their useful life. W e also recommend the City 
im plement procedures to ensure that as capital assets are sold, destroyed, or retired they are removed fro m 
the capita l assets records at the appropriate value along with the related accumulated depreciation. 

M anagem ent's Response - Capital assets are identified through the purchasing process and are to be 
captured in specific general ledger accounts. For purposes of our separate accounting for capital assets, we 
will implement pro cedures to improve our ability to identify capital additions and retirements on a timely 
basis by reviewing the general ledger capital accounts month ly an d making the appropriate entries to 
record capital and infrastructure assets. W e will implement procedures to meet with engineering and 
public works offi cials on a monthly bas is to discuss any significant capital retirements based on our 
knowledge of the areas where additions were recorded during the month . 



The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City 
M arch 21, 2003 
Page 3 

Payroll - One employee splits her time be tween a federal program and nonfederal duties. As required by 
the federal program an after-the-fact distribution of her time is maintained, however, these timesbe ets are 
not signed by the employee. W e recommend the employee sign each fimesheet. 

M anagem ent's Response - The above noted  employee has begun signing her timeshce ts and we will 
in stitute follow up procedures to ensure this continues. 

Authorization - W e noted three instances in which check requests for a federal progr am disbursement did 
not reflect authorization by all appropriate parties. W e also noted two instances in which an  expenditure 
was only supported  by a check request, no invoice or chec k copy co uld be  located. W hile these co sts were 
determined to be allowable, we recommend the City implement controls to review payments to ensure the 
paym ent is supported  by an  appropriately auth orized check request an d an invoice. 

M anagem ent's Response - Currently, our accounts payable clerk reviews invoices to ensure that all 
docum entation has been attached and appropriate signatures have been obtained. Th e Accounting 
Departm ent will monitor this approval process more closely in the future to ensure all payments are 
properly supported an d auth orized. 

W e also issued a letter dated M arch 21, 2003 in connection with our separate audit of the Centu ryTel 
Center Arena Fund of the City of Bossier City in which we identified certain matters involving internal 
control and its operation at the Centu ryTel Center. 

Our  audit proc edur es are designed  primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the finan cial statements, 
and therefore may not bring to light all weaknesses in policies or procedures th at may exist. W e aim , 
however, to use our knowledge of the City's organ ization gained during our work to make comments an d 
suggestions that we hope will be useful to you. 

This report is intended solely for the information an d use of the M ayor, City Council, man agement, an d 
th e State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor an d federal awar ding agencies an d is not intended to be and 
should not be used by an yone oth er th an th ese specified  parties. 

W e appreciate the assistance and cooperation of all of the personnel of the City. W e will be pleased to 
discuss these comments and recomm endations with you at an y time. 

Very truly yours, 


